
Notice of Meeting 

 
 

 
   

 

 
County Hall, New Road, Oxford, OX1 1ND 

www.oxfordshire.gov.uk  Media Enquiries 01865 323870 
 

Oxfordshire Joint Health Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee 

Thursday, 24 November 2022 at 10.00 am 

Council Chamber - County Hall, New Road, Oxford OX1 1ND 
Membership 
 

Chairman - Councillor Jane Hanna OBE 

Deputy Chairman –  Councillor Paul Barrow 
 

Councillors: Nigel Champken-Woods 

Imade Edosomwan 

Damian Haywood 

Nick Leverton 

Dan Levy 

Dr Nathan Ley 

District 

Councillors: 

Jabu Nala-Hartley 

Elizabeth Poskitt 

Jason Slaymaker 

David Turner 

  

Co-optees: Jean Bradlow Barbara Shaw Vacancy 
 

Notes: Date of next meeting: 9 February 2023 
 

What does this Committee review or scrutinise? 

 Any matter relating to the planning, provision and operation of health services in the area of 
its local authorities. 

 Health issues, systems or economics, not just services provided, commissioned or managed 
by the NHS. 

 

How can I have my say? 

We welcome the views of the community on any issues in relation to the responsibilities of this 
Committee.  Members of the public may ask to speak on any item on the agenda or may suggest 
matters which they would like the Committee to look at.  Requests to speak must be submitted 
to the Committee Officer below no later than 9 am on the working day before the date of 
the meeting. 
 

For more information about this Committee please contact: 

Committee Officer - Simon Wright, Committee Support Officer 
 Email: 

committees.democraticservices@oxfordshire.gov.uk 
 

 

 
Stephen Chandler  
Chief Executive November 2022 

Public Document Pack

http://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/


 

 

 
About the Oxfordshire Joint Health Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
 
The Joint Committee is made up of 15 members. Twelve of them are Councillors, seven 

from Oxfordshire County Council, and one from each of the District Councils – Cherwell, 
West Oxfordshire, Oxford City, Vale of White Horse, and South Oxfordshire. Three 

people can be co-opted to the Joint Committee to bring a community perspective. It is 
administered by the County Council. Unlike other local authority Scrutiny Committees, 
the work of the Health Scrutiny Committee involves looking ‘outwards’ and across 

agencies. Its focus is on health, and while its main interest is likely to be the NHS, it may 
also look at services provided by local councils which have an impact on health. 

 

About Health Scrutiny 
 

Health Scrutiny is about: 

 Providing a challenge to the NHS and other organisations that provide health care 

 Examining how well the NHS and other relevant organisations are performing  

 Influencing the Cabinet on decisions that affect local people 

 Representing the community in NHS decision making, including responding to 
formal consultations on NHS service changes 

 Helping the NHS to develop arrangements for providing health care in Oxfordshire 

 Promoting joined up working across organisations 

 Looking at the bigger picture of health care, including the promotion of good health  

 Ensuring that health care is provided to those who need it the most 
 

Health Scrutiny is NOT about: 

 Making day to day service decisions 

 Investigating individual complaints. 

 

What does this Committee do? 
 
The Committee meets up to 5 times a year or more. It develops a work programme, 

which lists the issues it plans to investigate. These investigations can include whole 
committee investigations undertaken during the meeting, or reviews by a panel of 
members doing research and talking to lots of people outside of the meeting.  Once an 

investigation is completed the Committee provides its advice to the relevant part of the 
Oxfordshire (or wider) NHS system and/or to the Cabinet, the full Councils or scrutiny 

committees of the relevant local authorities. Meetings are open to the public and all 
reports are available to the public unless exempt or confidential, when the items would 
be considered in closed session. 

 

If you have any special requirements (such as a large print 

version of these papers or special access facilities) please 
contact the officer named on the front page, giving as much 

notice as possible before the meeting  

A hearing loop is available at County Hall. 
 

 



 

 

 

AGENDA 
 
 

1. Apologies for Absence and Appointments  
 

2. Declarations of Interest - see guidance note on the back page  
 

3. Minutes (Pages 1 - 12) 
 

To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 22 September 2022 and to receive 
information arising from them. 

4. Speaking to or Petitioning the Committee  
 

Members of the public who wish to speak at this meeting can attend the meeting in  

person or ‘virtually’ through an online connection. 
 

Requests to speak must be submitted by no later than 9am four working days before  
the meeting i.e.. 9 am on Thursday 17 November 2022. Requests to speak should  
be sent to simon.wright@oxfordshire.gov.uk   

 
If you are speaking ‘virtually’, you may submit a written statement of your 

presentation to ensure that if the technology fails, then your views can still be taken  
into account. A written copy of your statement can be provided no later than 9 am 2  
working days before the meeting. Written submissions should be no longer than one 

A4 sheet. 

5. Primary Care (Pages 13 - 70) 
 

10.20am 
 
To receive a report from Julie Dandridge and Dan Leveson, on behalf of the 

Integrated Care Board, on Primary Care and Population Growth within Oxfordshire.  
 

This report should also be read in conjunction with the report by the Health Scrutiny 
Officer on the findings from the recent HOSC Primary Care  Workshop.   
 

To Committee is expected to consider various recommendations in respect of this 
item.  

6. Integrated Care Programme for Oxfordshire (Pages 71 - 98) 
 

mailto:simon.wright@oxfordshire.gov.uk


- 2 - 
 

 

11.40am 
 
To receive a system progress update led by Lily O’Connor, Director of Urgent Care, 

on the Integrated Care Programme with a specific focus on the metrics around 
outcomes as discussed at the June Committee Meeting.  

 12.25pm - Lunch for 35 Minutes 

7. Serious Mental Health (Pages 99 - 110) 
 

1.00pm 

 
To consider a report by Katrina Anderson, Oxford Health, considering current service 
provision and opportunities for service improvement for residents with serious mental 

illness vulnerable and often marginalised group. 

8. Work Programme (Pages 111 - 118) 
 

1.45pm 
 
To review the Committee’s work programme for the remainder of the 2022/23 

municipal year. 

9. Actions and Recommendations Tracker (Pages 119 - 124) 
 

1.50pm 
 

To review progress against the Committee’s agreed actions and recommendations.  

The Committee is asked to note progress made and agree any actions arising. 

10. Healthwatch Update (Pages 125 - 128) 
 

2.00pm 
 

To receive a report from Oxfordshire Healthwatch. 

11. Chair's Update Report (Pages 129 - 148) 
 

2.15pm 

 
To receive an update from the Chair of the Committee.  



- 3 - 
 

 

 

Declarations of Interest 
 
The duty to declare….. 

Under the Localism Act 2011 it is a criminal offence to 
(a) fail to register a disclosable pecuniary interest within 28 days of election or co-option (or re-

election or re-appointment), or 
(b) provide false or misleading information on registration, or 
(c) participate in discussion or voting in a meeting on a matter in which the member or co-opted 

member has a disclosable pecuniary interest. 

Whose Interests must be included? 

The Act provides that the interests which must be notified are those of a member or co-opted 
member of the authority, or 

 those of a spouse or civil partner of the member or co-opted member; 

 those of a person with whom the member or co-opted member is living as husband/wife 
 those of a person with whom the member or co-opted member is living as if they were civil 

partners. 
(in each case where the member or co-opted member is aware that the other person has the 
interest). 

What if I remember that I have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest during the Meeting?. 

The Code requires that, at a meeting, where a member or co-opted member has a disclosable 
interest (of which they are aware) in any matter being considered, they disclose that interest to 
the meeting. The Council will continue to include an appropriate item on agendas for all 
meetings, to facilitate this. 

Although not explicitly required by the legislation or by the code, it is recommended that in the 
interests of transparency and for the benefit of all in attendance at the meeting (including 
members of the public) the nature as well as the existence of the interest is disclosed. 

A member or co-opted member who has disclosed a pecuniary interest at a meeting must not 
participate (or participate further) in any discussion of the matter; and must not participate in any 
vote or further vote taken; and must withdraw from the room. 

Members are asked to continue to pay regard to the following provisions in the code that “You 
must serve only the public interest and must never improperly confer an advantage or 
disadvantage on any person including yourself” or “You must not place yourself in situations 
where your honesty and integrity may be questioned…..”. 

Please seek advice from the Monitoring Officer prior to the meeting should you have any doubt 
about your approach. 

List of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests: 
Employment (includes“any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit 
or gain”.), Sponsorship, Contracts, Land, Licences, Corporate Tenancies, Securities. 

 
For a full list of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests and further Guidance on this matter please see 
the Guide to the New Code of Conduct and Register of Interests at Members’ conduct guidelines. 
http://intranet.oxfordshire.gov.uk/wps/wcm/connect/occ/Insite/Elected+members/ or email 
democracy@oxfordshire.gov.uk for a hard copy of the document.  

 
 

 

http://intranet.oxfordshire.gov.uk/wps/wcm/connect/occ/Insite/Elected+members/
mailto:democracy@oxfordshire.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

OXFORDSHIRE JOINT HEALTH OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

 
MINUTES of the meeting held on Thursday, 22 September 2022 commencing at 

10.00 am and finishing at 2.40 pm 
 
Present: 

 
 

Voting Members: Councillor Jane Hanna OBE – in the Chair 

 
 District Councillor Paul Barrow (Deputy Chair) 

Councillor Imade Edosomwan 
Councillor Damian Haywood 
Councillor Nathan Ley  

Councillor Freddie van Mierlo 
City Councillor Jabu Nala-Hartley 

District Councillor David Turner 
Jean Bradlow 
Barbara Shaw 

 
Co-opted Members: 

 
 

Jean Bradlow 

Barbara Shaw 

Other Members in 

Attendance: 
 

 

Councillor Mark Lygo         

Councillor Tim Bearder 
Councillor Jenny Hannaby 

By Invitation: 
 

Rosalind Pearce (Healthwatch Oxfordshire) 
Emily Lewis-Edwards (Community First Oxfordshire) 

Martin Chester (South Central Ambulance Service) 
Will Hancock (South Central Ambulance Service) 

Mike Murphy (South Central Ambulance Service) 
Tom Stevenson (South Central Ambulance Service) 
Kirsten Wells-Drewitt (South Central Ambulance Service) 

 
 

 
Officers: 

Whole of meeting 
 

 

Part of meeting 
 

 
Eddie Scott, Health Scrutiny Officer 

Tom Hudson, Clerk 
 

Ansaf Azhar, Corporate Director of Public Health 
Derys Pragnell, Consultant in Public Health 
Katharine Eveleigh, Health Improvement Practitioner 

David Munday, Consultant in Public Health 
Karen Fuller, Interim Corporate Director of Adults and 

Housing 
 

  

  

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



JHO3 

Agenda Item Officer Attending 

  
 
The Scrutiny Committee considered the matters, reports and recommendations 

contained or referred to in the agenda for the meeting [, together with a schedule of 
addenda tabled at the meeting/the following additional documents:] and agreed as 

set out below.  Copies of the agenda and reports [agenda, reports and 
schedule/additional documents] are attached to the signed Minutes. 
 

 

52/22 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND TEMPORARY APPOINTMENTS  
(Agenda No. 1) 
 

Apologies were received from Cllrs Champken-Woods, Leverton and Poskitt. Cllr 
Nala-Hartley sent word that she would be late to the meeting. 

 

53/22 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST - SEE GUIDANCE NOTE ON THE BACK 

PAGE  
(Agenda No. 2) 
 

Cllr Hanna noted her position as Chief Executive of SUDEP Action. 
 

Cllr Van Mierlo declared an interest on the basis of working as an independent 
consultant for companies making medicinal products for lung cancer.  
 

54/22 MINUTES  
(Agenda No. 3) 
 
The minutes of the HOSC meeting held on 14 July were AGREED as an accurate 

record subject to the following amendments: 
 

1) That reference be made to Cllr Turner’s request to Oxford Health in item 43/22 
for information concerning what had happened to those residents of South 
Oxfordshire who had been assessed for palliative care and not been able to 

access beds in Wallingford. No answer to this question had been received.  
2) That reference in item 43/22 be made to the Working in partnership with 

people and communities: Statutory guidance, specifically in respect of 
communities who had been worked with, and understood the history of 
change. 

 

55/22 SPEAKING TO OR PETITIONING THE COMMITTEE  
(Agenda No. 4) 

 
None 
 

56/22 OXFORDSHIRE TOBACCO CONTROL STRATEGY  
(Agenda No. 5) 
 
Cllr Mark Lygo, Cabinet Member for Public Health and Equalities, Ansaf Azhar, 

Director of Public Health, Derys Pragnell, Consultant in Public Health, and Katharine 

Page 2



JHO3 

Eveleigh, Health Improvement Practitioner, attended to present a report to the 

Committee in respect of the work already achieved as part of the Tobacco Control 
Strategy, and the reconfiguration of the Strategy, post-pandemic. 
 

Cllr Lygo, Cabinet Member for Public Health and Equalities explained the context of 
the report. Smoking was the leading cause of preventable death in the UK, and the 

single greatest modifiable risk factor in cancer, COPD, miscarriages, still-births and 
birth anomalies. To tackle this, in March 2020 the Council adopted a five-year Smoke 
Free Strategy with the ambition of reducing the prevalence of smoking to below 5% 

by 2025. Owing to the pandemic, progress towards this goal had been slower than 
originally envisaged. 

 
Ansaf Azhar, Director of Public Health, noted that the health impacts of smoking were 
disproportionately experienced by those experiencing disadvantage in society. For 

instance, whilst Oxfordshire’s prevalence at the launch of the strategy was below the 
national average at between 10-11% those experiencing problems with serious 

mental health were at around 30%, likewise social housing tenants, and manual 
workers over 20%. The Council’s approach, therefore, needed to be targeted rather 
than universal. The Council had had the efficacy of different interventions 

independently assessed to identify the most effective ones for inclusion within the 
strategy. Evidence showed that a focus broader than simply smoking cessation 

services was required to underpin the ability of the majority of smokers to quit. This 
breadth was enabled by the strategy being a partnership document, signed by all the 
local councils, as well as local health partners, with specific actions for each partner. 

The effect of Covid was to put a complete stop to many of these actions for over two 
years. As a consequence, reaching the 5% target would be significantly more 
challenging. Nevertheless, not all actions had been stopped, and the importance of 

reducing smoking numbers meant it was important to keep on striving to meet the 
target on schedule. Looking from a national perspective, the Khan Review’s 

recommendations provided much greater impetus for smoking cessation than 
previously, and it was important to keep up the momentum in order to capture as 
much benefit from the Khan Review interventions as possible.  

 
Derys Pragnell, Consultant in Public Health, presented the data as known at the time, 

which owing to Covid, was a little further out of date than would be expected. 
Smoking rates overall were declining, but with very significant spikes amongst a 
number of demographics, including those with serious mental health problems, 

routine manual workers and social housing tenants. Country of birth had a significant 
impact, with those born in Eastern Europe also displaying high rates. Following its 

habit of reviewing its strategy in light of new guidance, the Tobacco Control Alliance, 
made up of the County and District Councils, and health partners had recently begun 
co-producing interventions to help social housing tenants stop their smoking habits. 

Additional work was being undertaken with Trading Standards to reduce under-age 
sales of e-cigarettes. Key areas of focus for the coming year were expected to 

include enhancing the integration of smoking cessation services with the maternity 
pathway and early years, a review of provision for young people, developing smoke-
free areas, improved enforcement and a Stoptober campaign about mental health 

and wellbeing.  
 

Page 3



JHO3 

The Committee explored ability of stigma to reduce smoking, but also its impact in 

preventing people from coming forward for treatment for smoking-related diseases. 
Ansaf Azhar confirmed that the focus on the Strategy was not to build additional 
stigma but to enable smokers to give up. Katharine Everleigh, Health Improvement 

Practitioner noted that the Council and system partners followed nationally-
recognised good practice in the form of evidence-based questioning which was 

designed not to cause stigma.  
 
E-cigarettes were a complex issue for the Committee, specifically the tension 

between their usefulness as a tool for smoking cessation amongst tobacco smokers, 
and the ‘gateway’ effect of younger people taking up vaping without having previously 

smoked. Ansaf Azhar recognised the importance of e cigarettes in helping existing 
smokers quit, and their dangers as a gateway to nicotine consumption. The 
Committee was informed that a national review had concluded that whilst not 

absolutely safe, e-cigarettes were 95% safer than tobacco cigarettes. It was 
important, therefore, that their use as a tool to help tobacco smokers quit was not 

undermined, but it was also recognised that the work was necessary to prevent 
young people taking up vaping, particularly with the mistaken view that doing so was 
risk-free. This was being undertaken in conjunction with schools via anti-addiction 

training and work by School Health Nurses, as well as existing programmes from the 
Fire Service and Trading Standards but the need for more work, particularly focusing 

on the harm of addition rather than direct health harms, was necessary.  It was 
requested and agreed that feedback on this additional work with children and young 
people would be provided to the HOSC. 

 
The challenge of developing coordinated policy across all schools within a 
fragmented educational context which allowed academies to set their own policies 

was explored. Cllr Lygo drew attention to the fact smoking was not allowed by law in 
any school but that the Council was working with schools to try and develop smoke-

free school gates.  If HOSC members had particular concerns about specific schools 
the topic should be raised with the relevant Head Teachers. In the longer-run, 
however, the Tobacco Control Alliance would review recently-changed advice from 

NICE on the most effective approaches to working with schools and parents before 
embarking on specific actions to address these issues.  

 
In view of the cost of living crisis and the growth in demand for illegal tobacco it would 
engender, the adequacy of the £6000 of fines issued by the Council for selling illegal 

tobacco was queried. It was recognised by Ansaf Azhar that with enforcement 
forming one of the four pillars to the strategic approach, more needed to be done and 

would be looked into on the back of Scrutiny’s challenge. Equally however, it was 
noted that other alliance members, such as the districts, also were involved in issuing 
fines through their licensing inspections. 

 
The Committee also queried the degree to which the Council was building on the 

opportunities afforded by the cost of living crisis to develop relationships with 
stakeholders, such as advice centres and food banks, and through them with 
members of key disadvantaged communities.  Though work was being undertaken 

with social housing providers, the suggestion of food banks was recognised as 
valuable and would be looked into as part of an assessment as to which services 

were being accessed and how every contact could be made to count.  

Page 4



JHO3 

 

More information was sought in relation to the actual nature of the work being 
undertaken with social housing providers. Given that it had only recently begun, to 
date it included training of housing officers around smoking cessation conversations, 

and a review of the information available to tenants. However, a key element of work 
which was yet to be undertaken was co-production with tenants. The outcome of this 

would heavily inform the work undertaken in the future.  
 
The Committee explored whether the community-basis of much of the work to stop 

smoking would translate to funding from the BOB ICS coming to Council services. It 
was noted that the Chair of the BOB ICS was Javid Khan, the author of the Khan 

review, an individual keen to see the entire BOB ICS area become smoke-free. The 
Inequality Forum of the BOB ICS was prioritising smoking cessation but it was felt 
that interventions when people were entering into the healthcare service for elective 

surgeries, mental health or maternity would likely be more effective than community-
based services.  

 
The Committee questioned how much, in light of Covid, individuals who were 
vulnerable owing to smoking-related health conditions were getting the support they 

needed. This, it was explained, would be a key part of the BOB’s ICP strategy, but 
more immediately increased numbers of health checks were being made available.  

 
Finally, the realism of the modelled reductions in smoking were challenged. It was 
accepted that the models had been developed prior to Covid, meaning possibly some 

disruption. However, the models would be kept under review, and as a counter-
balance to the negative impacts of Covid, a lot effort was being invested nationally 
and locally into smoking cessation, efforts which would reasonably be expected to 

show clear reductions in smoking.  
 
The Committee AGREED to: 

 
1) Give its support to the proposed amended actions to the Smoke Free Strategy 

Action Plan 
2) Recommend to the Health and Wellbeing Board that work to consider how the 

smoke-free agenda could be progressed further in light of the cost of living 
crisis be undertaken, as well as work with younger people around the addictive 
potential of e-cigarettes.  

3) To emphasise to the Health and Wellbeing Board the importance of 
meaningful co-production in service and strategy planning, as well as the 

avoidance of stigmatisation as a tool for smoking cessation.  
 

57/22 HEALTH INEQUALITIES IN RURAL AREAS  
(Agenda No. 6) 

 
Cllr Mark Lygo, Cabinet Member for Public Health & Equality, Ansaf Azhar, Director 

of Public Health, and David Munday, Consultant in Public Health provided a brief 
presentation and report as a precursor to the November report relating to the same 
topic.  

 

Page 5



JHO3 

David Munday, Consultant in Public Health broached the importance of population 

movements through changing birth and death rates, housing growth and migration in 
planning suitable health services for future demand. The Oxfordshire Joint Strategic 
Needs Assessment was the primary tool used by the Council for understanding these 

changes. Provisional data from the 2021 census indicated that population growth 
across the County over the last decade had been 11%, but that that growth had not 

been experienced equally across the County, with Vale of the White Horse 
experiencing the greatest. The fastest growing age groups within the County were 
people in their fifties and over 65. More granular, sub-district level data, would be 

available in the future release tranches of the 2021 census. The newest JSNA would 
be published in early October. 

 
The Committee asked for more information regarding the process for the provision of 
primary care services in areas experiencing new housing growth. Though known to 

be an ICB responsibility, the exact process was not known and the issue was 
identified as one requiring fuller unpacking at the November meeting. Councillors 

agreed, given their own experience of the difficulties caused for residents when the 
process did not run smoothly. District members on Planning Committees suggested 
that there was not an equivalence between the concern accorded to the provision of 

education and that accorded to healthcare, and it was necessary to know who within 
the NHS could knowledgeably address this imbalance.  

 
The Committee discussed the importance of recognising that rural inequalities 
stemmed partially from the inherent challenges of rural topography, but also from 

policy which meant that they were expected to take on more new housing than urban 
areas. A key issue the former of these challenges was ambulance waiting times, 
which in rural areas were necessarily higher simply owing to the greater distances 

needing to be travelled. For those without access to transport, access to primary care 
services in rural areas was also very challenging. Another area of concern in parts of 

the County was that of access to maternity services, and it was requested that data 
be provided on where future demand for such services would be required. In 
response, it was noted, however, that birth rates in localities were not the only 

determinant of demand for maternity services. Ethnicity, for example, was an 
important consideration in terms of access to maternity services, obesity rates during 

pregnancy and breast feeding rates were all core contributors to the outcomes for 
baby and mother in maternity services, and would also therefore impact where supply 
was located as much as simple levels of demand.  

 
Jean Bradlow and Cllr Haywood were put forward to join the Chair and Vice-Chair in 

scoping the November report more fully.  
 
 

58/22 HEALTHWATCH UPDATE  
(Agenda No. 7) 
 

Rosalind Pearce, Executive Director, Healthwatch Oxfordshire and Emily Lewis-
Edwards, Chief Executive of Community First Oxfordshire presented the Healthwatch 
update, which focused on a report developed by Community First Oxfordshire on 

behalf of Healthwatch Oxfordshire on rural isolation. 
 

Page 6



JHO3 

Emily Lewis-Edwards highlighted Community First Oxfordshire’s historical links with 

rural issues as a driver for the report, but also noted the more immediate driver of 
Covid and the exclusionary effect for some of the move towards digital provision. In 
total, 528 people took part in surveys, focus groups or interviews. Overall, the 

feedback was that people knew their neighbours, had and used the internet, and 
owned their own private vehicle. However, in all three categories small numbers of 

exceptions existed, for whom their lack of neighbour support, internet or transport 
was highly problematic. Indeed, even amongst those owning private vehicles, lack of 
public transport was a contributor to isolation. Time, confidence or lack of physical 

capacity tended to be the reasons why individuals reported not getting involved in 
community activities, which were identified as crucial in challenging isolation. The key 

conclusions drawn were that any solutions to rural isolation should be multifaceted. 
Nevertheless, given the weight given to issues of transport, community activities and 
access to information full consideration should be given to how these needs could be 

met within a specific community.  
 

In response to the presentation, the Committee explored a number of issues. These 
included the degree to which the issues raised were specifically rural issues or 
actually universal ones. In response it was recognised that physical distance was 

more of an issue for rural areas, but that many of the problems of access were the 
same in disadvantaged communities in rural or urban areas. Another issue explored 

concerned the means of collecting the underlying data, whether it itself by being 
primarily online was exclusionary. The limitations were recognised, but so was the 
fact that some aspects were online at the request of participants, and that feedback 

from those who were spoken to in person correlated with the responses received by 
those submitting their views online.  The Committee welcomed the way in which the 
report shone a light on the needs of individuals in a more granular way than the Joint 

Strategic Needs Assessment could, giving voice to those minorities in villages where 
the majority were generally managing.  

 
Cllr Lygo, Cabinet Member for Health and Equalities, expressed the wish to see the 
work extended to more ‘on the ground’ consultation in relevant areas. Linking in with 

stakeholders relating to specific areas of focus, such as transport, would likely prove 
fruitful.  

 
Rosalind Pearce also provided a verbal update relating to Healthwatch’s activity. 
Healthwatch had held a round-table on access to dentistry. Access to dentist for 

routine appointments was reported to be very challenging for those not already 
registered with a dentist. Out of hours demand for those without a dentist often 

provided a stop-gap but not permanent solutions.  At the round-table commissioners, 
dentists and public health officials agreed that local commissioning could, over time, 
rise to meet demands. Dentists were facing difficulties with recruiting staff, as well as 

the level of payments for dental services. In the short term these difficulties were 
likely to persist. A similar round table was due to be held around pharmacy provision.  

 

59/22 SOUTH CENTRAL AMBULANCE SERVICE  
(Agenda No. 8) 
 

Will Hancock, Chief Executive Officer of South Central Ambulance Service, and 
Martin Chester, Clinical Operations Manager, South Oxfordshire, made a 

Page 7



JHO3 

presentation to the Committee on the service provided by South Central Ambulance 

Service (SCAS), performance and the Care Quality Commission (CQC) improvement 
programme. They were supported by Tom Stevenson, Comms and Engagement 
Lead for the SCAS Improvement Programme, Mike Murphy, Director of Strategy and 

Governance at SCAS, and Kirsten Wells-Drewitt, Head of Operations in Oxfordshire 
at SCAS. 

 
Will Hancock, SCAS Chief Executive introduced the report. The August report from 
the CQC, giving SCAS an ‘inadequate’ rating, was a significant departure from the 

organisation’s pre-pandemic trajectory, where it had been moving towards an 
‘outstanding’ rating. The Board was disappointed to see the change in direction, but 

were committed to addressing the issues raised as a matter of urgency. The key 
issue of concern focused on emergency and urgent care, and an improvement plan 
had been developed to address the areas of concern highlighted by the CQC. A 

comprehensive governance structure was in place to hold the organisation to 
account, as well as ensure planned activities complemented other areas of the health 

care system. Broadly, the improvement plan focused on four key areas: culture and 
wellbeing, governance, patient safety and experience, and performance recovery. A 
number of priority actions had already been undertaken as part of the improvement 

programme, including increasing capacity in safeguarding teams, ambulance crews 
and amongst call-centre staff, enhanced equipment checks and provision, staff-

support measures and a governance review. The CQC report did note some areas of 
outstanding work, highlighting the pride and hard work of staff, the kindness shown 
by staff, and the level of innovation shown. The organisation’s improvement plan 

needed to be delivered in the face of significant national pressures around 
recruitment and retention, as well as increasing demand for services. In terms of 
performance, SCAS was performing below the national for category 1 calls (the most 

severe) but was exceeding it in categories 2-4. 
 

In response to the presentation the Committee raised multiple questions. More 
information was sought regarding the mechanics of how meaningful culture change 
would be effected. Whilst national surveys indicated that ambulance services were 

prone to poor cultural practices, the CQC report acted as a conversation starter with 
staff. Embedding appropriate values within the organisation was a strong component 

of the organisation’s leadership development programme. Taking measures to 
support the increasing the diversity within the workforce were being taken at staff-
level and at Board level. Kirsten Wells-Drewitt, as a Chair of one of the People of 

Culture boards, confirmed their value in giving voice to staff to feedback on policies 
and practices, and making the workings of the organisation more transparent.  

 
The Committee questioned whether sufficient financial resource was available to 
cover the work outlined in the improvement programme. It was confirmed that for the 

current financial year it was, and additional funding from NHS England meant that 
future funding was not currently a concern.  

 
The importance of challenge from the Board to senior management and holding them 
to account was recognised by the Committee and assurance was sought on how this 

might be improved. An externally-led review was being undertaken by NHS England 
experts, which would report to the Board. This would especially focus on risk 

classification and escalation. Actions would need to be determined from the feedback 

Page 8



JHO3 

arising from the review. SCAS was also working with exemplars of governance best 

practice to learn ways to improve.   
 
The Committee sought to know whether the CQC result was a surprise to the Board. 

It had been recognised that the organisation had been running very thin over Covid, 
with resources being diverted away from training, coordination and performance 

management towards simply maintaining front-line services for an extended period. 
As a consequence, a higher level of risk that performance would eventually drop did 
exist. The Board were aware of this risk.  

 
It was recognised by the Committee that hearing from staff how the report had been 

received was incredibly important, and the degree to which structures existed to 
enable this feedback was raised. The Board had begun to take the opportunity with 
the reduction in Covid of visiting ambulance stations to hear directly from staff. 

Overall, however, the feedback was one of a shared frustration across the 
organisation at the results of the report.  

 
Reported problems for younger and more junior female colleagues were noted by the 
Committee and the actions taken to address them were challenged. Simply, the 

reports were accepted to be unacceptable. Awareness and education campaigns 
were being put into place to challenge bad-but-normalised behaviours towards 

women across the organisation. Further investment in developing manager 
understanding of the non-acceptability of behaviour which abused positions of trust 
and responsibility was also being implemented.  Measures to protect particularly 

vulnerable staff, students in particular, were also underway. It was also reported that 
long-serving female staff had noted that although there were issues, the trajectory 
towards the treatment of women was improving, particularly as the numbers grew 

and more were represented as senior leadership levels. It was recognised that there 
were areas in the service, however, where female representation at manager and 

senior manager level was not increasing at the same rate, particularly around 
Operations, and this had been identified as requiring further work.  
 

Given the impact of the operation of the wider healthcare system on the ambulance 
service’s performance, the working relationship with partners was discussed. The 

Integrated Improvement Programme would not necessarily be a silver bullet for the 
ambulance service, but the real-time date provided was expected to make marginal 
improvements across multiple areas. Overall, relationships and cross-working in 

Oxfordshire was reported to be extremely well-functioning and were being copied by 
other localities.  

 
The Committee wished to know more about how non-mandatory recommendations 
from the CQC report were being prioritised. Many of the non-mandatory 

recommendations were already in hand given that they matched the organisation’s 
own priorities, but the process was being managed overall using its performance 

improvement methodologies.  
 
To ensure sufficient staff were working to deliver the service’s objectives the 

Committee asked about support for staff, particularly in relation to stress and mental 
health. In response, it was noted that ambulance staff face multiple elevated risks to 

their wellbeing, be it through lifting, infection, shift-pattern induced fatigue or driving-

Page 9



JHO3 

related risks. Relating specifically to mental health, however, the issue was one taken 

particularly seriously at SCAS, as reflected by Will Hancock’s involvement in national-
level activity to improve mental health within the ambulance sector. The starting point 
was trying to reduce stigma and normalise conversations about mental health. The 

organisation was participating in a number of national campaigns which were 
promoting multiple conversations. The close relationship with Oxford Health also 

meant easy access to high quality advice and support for staff.  
 
Finally, clarification was sought on how long the CQC rating would remain without 

being re-evaluated, given that the Committee was keen to see the trust re-upgraded. 
Backlogs at the CQC meant the expectation was that a re-inspection was likely to 

take a frustratingly long time, though no specific timeframe was put forward.  
 
The Committee AGREED that SCAS return to the Committee and give an update on 

progress in February 2023.  
 

60/22 RESPONSES TO PREVIOUS HOSC RECOMMENDATIONS  
(Agenda No. 9) 

 
Cllr Tim Bearder, Cabinet Member for Adult Social Care, joined the meeting to 

discuss the Cabinet’s response to the HOSC recommendation made by the 
Committee at its 09 June 2022 meeting concerning the First 30 Days of the 
pandemic.  The Council’s intention to participate in the relevant elements national 

review was confirmed.  The Health Scrutiny Officer had been in contact with the 
national review to identify those elements and the deadlines for involvement, and it 
was AGREED that this would be shared with the Cabinet member and senior officers 

in the form of a briefing note to outline how the Council could proactively be involved. 
 

The response to the Committee’s recommendation made in relation to the Integrated 
Improvement Programme was NOTED. 

 

61/22 ACTIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS TRACKER  
(Agenda No. 10) 
 

Eddie Scott, Health Scrutiny Officer, updated the Committee on actions from the 
Committee, drawing attention to the forthcoming Primary Care workshop, and the first 

meeting of the Integrated Improvement Programme sub group. Progress against the 
Committee’s actions and recommendations was NOTED.  

 

The Committee was informed that the Health Scrutiny Officer had spoken with the 
commissioner responsible for a potential variation to the sexual assault referral centre 

in Bicester. It was confirmed that the plan was simply to make a change in location, 
with no change in services. The location change was owing to move to a building with 
a necessary kite mark for safety. The Committee AGREED that a subset of Members 

would undertake a review to determine whether it was a substantial variation and 
make a recommendation to the Committee if further work was required.  

 

62/22 CHAIR'S UPDATE  
(Agenda No. 11) 
 

Page 10



JHO3 

Cllr Hanna, Chair of the HOSC, introduced her Chair’s update to the Committee.  

 
Cllr Barrow was invited to feed back on the visit undertaken to the Henry Cornish 
Care Home in Chipping Norton. He, Cllr Poskitt and Barbara Shaw had visited and 

seen first hand the understanding of infection control and infrastructure in place to 
support it. However, members were keen to visit a less well-equipped care home to 

see what experience for patients might be like at care homes which had suffered high 
mortality in the first wave of the pandemic, and which had suffered repeatedly high 
mortality rates across all waves of the pandemic. It was AGREED by the Committee 

that the findings should be submitted as a paper back to the Committee when 
complete, and submitted as evidence within the Covid-19 national enquiry.   

 
Cllr Hanna informed the Committee that the Covid-19 sub-group was designed to 
monitor the recovery of elective surgery temporarily closed during the pandemic to 

inform the focus of the ongoing work programme. Learning would be brought back to 
the committee.  

 
Eddie Scott, Health Scrutiny Officer, provided an update on the activity of the MSK 
sub-group, which had met with Connect Health (the new MSK service provider) to 

discuss their vision, approach and plan for service user engagement and plans for 
meeting the KPIs set by the ICB. Members who attended were assured of the 

capacity of the service to provide a service which would meet the needs of users 
across multiple locations, but that there was room for improvement regarding 
communication with members around the self-referral pathway and some issues 

about the fitness for purpose of the website. One outcome was that a place was 
offered on the service’s Service User Engagement sub-group to the HOSC. It was 
AGREED that Barbara Shaw would be the HOSC’s representative.  

 
Relating to the Integrated Improvement Programme sub-group, two 

recommendations were made to the Committee: 1) That members of the sub-group 
should seek to meet with the Chair of the BOB ICB to seek assurance of the ICB’s 
commitment to the Integrated Improvement Programme, and 2) That the Chair and 

vice-Chair meet with Sam Foster, from OUH, to discuss plans to reopen currently 
closed maternity units in Oxfordshire. These recommendations were AGREED.  

 

63/22 WORK PROGRAMME  
(Agenda No. 12) 
 

Eddie Scott, Health Scrutiny Officer, provided an update to the proposed work 
programme. The Committee was expected to have a further, more detailed item on 

Rural Inequalities in November. The February meeting would have an item 
concerning the MSK service, as well as an update from SCAS regarding the status of 
their improvement programme. 

 
It was AGREED by the Committee that rather than the Committee taking them as 

items on the work programme, that the Chair would write to the Cabinet member to 
highlight concerns around the impact of LTNs with regards to access to health 
services, and maternity services at the Horton and that a written update be provided.  

 
The proposed work programme was AGREED. 

Page 11



JHO3 

 

 
 in the Chair 

  

Date of signing   

 

 
 
 

Page 12



Primary care and population growth 

Executive Summary  

This ICB paper is in follow-up to a HOSC primary care workshop held in October 

2022. The focus of the workshop was primary care workforce and estates. This 

report should be read in conjunction with the Health Scrutiny Report which appends 

the Local Medical Committee presentation and additional data for information.   

The participants of the workshop acknowledged capacity in primary care is 

constrained. They also recognised most patients are happy with the service from 

general practice as evidenced in the patient survey. Solutions to pressures on 

buildings will consider the impact of new models or care, new technologies and 

different workforce models. These will require different types of space and estate in 

the future. 

Context 

General practice is responsive to the growing population across Oxfordshire, 

particularly in areas of housing growth.   

There are currently 67 GP practices across Oxfordshire serving 800,000 people. 

These are organised into 20 Primary Care Networks (PCNs) in North, Central and 

South localities. Practices operate out of 83 practice buildings (as well as 5 village 

halls) and of these 

 23% are converted residential buildings  

 77% are purpose-built premises  

 60 % of the purpose-built surgeries being more than 20 years old  

 55% are owner occupied  

 45% are leased (including the village hall types) 

There have been many small investments to create additional consultation rooms in 

individual practices.  More recently Long Hanborough opened a new branch surgery 

(funded by developer contributions) and Northgate Health Centre opened a new 

building in the centre of Oxford for three city centre practices. 

The general practice workforce continues to slowly grow. The advent of new types of 

workforce, new models of care and new technologies will all contribute to developing 

a sustainability in General Practice. 

The Challenges 

1) Growing population 

There are 801,089 people registered with GP practices in Oxfordshire (1 October 

2022). This is an increase of over 42,000 (5.5%) in three and a half years. 

Oxfordshire County Council housing-led forecasts1 predict a total population in 

                                                                 
1 Oxfordshire housing-led population forecasts Feb 2022 update (2020-2030) Bitesize | Oxfordshire 
Insight 

Page 13

Agenda Item 5

https://insight.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/oxfordshire-housing-led-population-forecasts-feb-2022-update-2020-2030-bitesize
https://insight.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/oxfordshire-housing-led-population-forecasts-feb-2022-update-2020-2030-bitesize


Oxfordshire of 853,500 by 2030, a growth of 157,600 (+20%). Over the same 

period the ONS projections show an increase of +4%. 

The Oxfordshire primary care estates strategy2 highlights areas of greatest 

housing growth and where additional general practice will be needed. 

2) Increasing complexity 

 

The increasing number and proportion of older people will increase demand for 

primary care services. This may be particularly relevant to areas with new care 

homes or assisted living housing. Primary care will need to operate at a greater 

scale and in greater collaboration with other providers and professionals to meet 

demand for services.  

 

3) Lack of capital funding 

 

Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Berkshire West Integrated Care Board (BOB 

ICB) does not hold capital funds to invest in estate. Instead, it bids for estate 

investment from NHSE. Alternatives include relying on developers’ contributions. 

These are rarely sufficient to cover the necessary work to provide premises that 

meet modern health and care building standards. Without capital funding, most 

GP builds rely on a third party developer who will invest in a build. This is offset 

annual revenue funding from the ICB which can be challenging for the system. 

 

4) Unfit GP buildings 

 

Premises that are unfit for delivery of modern primary care are mainly houses 

converted to GP use, which often have narrow stairs, cramped consulting rooms, 

struggle with Disability Discrimination Act compliance, inadequate toilet facilities 

and spread over multiple levels. They are often older purpose-built surgery 

buildings which do not reflect modern methods of working. Unfit buildings create 

the following problems: 

 

 Poor patient experience.  

 Inability to operate successfully in pandemics.  

 Smaller Practices cannot provide a wide array of services.  

 Risk a poor CQC report.  

 Long full repairing and insuring leases. 

 

5) Lack of workforce 

Despite the higher than average number of GPs across Oxfordshire, there is 

currently not sufficient workforce to meet the primary care demands.  Many GPs are 

choosing to leave partnerships and become either salaried or work as locums.   

 

                                                                 
2 www.oxfordshireccg.nhs.uk/about-us/primary-care-estates-strategy-2020-25.htm 

Page 14

http://www.oxfordshireccg.nhs.uk/about-us/primary-care-estates-strategy-2020-25.htm


The Opportunities 

1) New models of care 

 

We are developing new models of care including integrated community care, 

multidisciplinary teams and different workforce (including voluntary and community 

sector). There are opportunities to deliver more joined-up health and social care with 

other organisations in partnership for the Oxfordshire population.  

 

2) BOB ICS infrastructure strategy 

The five-year Oxfordshire Primary Care Estates Strategy 2020-2025 incorporates a 

county-wide review of the existing primary care estate and identifies both key and 

critical investment priorities, using a prioritisation scoring system.  

BOB ICB has adopted the Oxfordshire strategy which will inform an Integrated Care 

System infrastructure strategy due for completion in March 2024.  As part of this 

each Primary Care Network (PCN) is also working through the national PCN toolkit 

which will inform any new funding allocations. 

3) Access to developer contributions 

Developers’ contributions are critical in ensuring that costs of creating new premises 

for general practice are offset by developers’ contributions. These can be either as 

part of section 106 agreement or as part of the Community Infrastructure Levy. The 

ICB currently receives and comments on all planning applications for new housing 

across Oxfordshire. Feedback makes clear the impact of new housing on health 

services. Success of gaining developers contributions varies across the Districts.  

Across South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Council developers’ 

contributions will support the Great Western Park Surgery development and have 

funded the creation of more consultation areas in Oak Tree Surgery.  

4) Maximising impact of developer contributions 

 

Previously developers’ contributions have come with conditions on how, where and 

on what they can be used. Allowing a GP practice two rooms in a community centre 

no longer meets the needs of the new population. There are opportunities to be more 

flexible with such contributions to provide maximum benefit to the population and 

health services. Plans are currently in place to use contributions to support an 

interim solution in Didcot and increase space in Abingdon. 

 

5) Use of ARRS (Additional Roles Reimbursement Scheme)  

It is unlikely that we will have enough GP workforce to deliver the care that we need 

so we need to consider other ways to deliver care. This will include supporting 

people to take manage their health. Additional roles are funded by NHS England to 

work at practice and PCN level. This can bring extra clinical and non-clinical 

resources. Some roles do require clinical supervision which adds to GP workloads. 

6) Recruiting, Retaining and Training GPs  

Page 15



There are many schemes in place across Oxfordshire to support the recruitment and 

retention of general practice staff.  These include: 

 

 Fellowship schemes to allow GPs to have undertake portfolio 

 Locum deck – a way for practices to easily access locums 

 Mentoring schemes 

 GP retainer scheme to support GPs coming back to general practices or 

working flexible hours 

 

Other components such as the GMS contract terms and conditions are out of the 

remit of the ICB. 

 

7) One Public estate 

Health is involved in the one public estate and health on the high street agenda 

which gives opportunities to work together to maximise use of existing estates. Some 

examples from around the country include building a GP surgery above a new 

primary school or developing a health hub with a GP practice and leisure facilities all 

located together or using vacant retail spaces. It is important that we consider health 

services at the heart of communities. 

8) Role of technology  

 

The COVID pandemic has changed the way patients interact with general practice.  

Digital solutions such as online registration, online appointments, ordering 

prescriptions online and booking appointments online can relieve the pressure on 

estates.  These solutions may not be suitable for all individuals and support should 

be tailored to meet people’s needs. 

Conclusion 

There are many challenges to general practice from new developments that bring 

new population into Oxfordshire.  Investment is needed in general practice estate to 

ensure it is fit for purpose and Local Authorities and Health should work together to 

ensure that investment is affordable and deliverable.  Partnership working, new 

models of care and technology have a pivotal role to play in ensuring we deliver 

sustainable, health and social care and achieve the best outcomes for the 

Oxfordshire population. 

Report Author: Julie Dandridge, Deputy Director.  

Head of Primary Care,  

Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Berkshire West Integrated Care Board 

Page 16



 

 
 

Oxfordshire Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee  

24 November 2022  
 

HOSC Primary Care Workshop Summarised Findings on GP 
Capacity and GP Workload  

 
 

RECOMMENDATION 

 
The Health Overview Scrutiny Committee is RECOMMENDED to- 

 

a) note the summarised findings on GP Capacity and GP Workload; and 
b) make any arising recommendations.  

 

Executive Summary 

 
1. This report summarises some of the notable findings and statistics heard by 

HOSC members at its Primary Care Workshop on 17 October 2022. The 
issues of the use of additional roles and primary care estates are covered 
within the same item by a report by the Integrated Care Board.  

2. The report and appendices also provides collated statistics to supplement the 
discussion on Primary Care Estates and use of additional roles. 

Demand, Capacity, and Activity in General Practice Presentation by 
Dr Richard Wood, CEO Berkshire, Buckinghamshire and 
Oxfordshire Local Medical (LMC) Committees 

 
3. Dr Richard Wood, CEO of Berkshire, Buckinghamshire and Oxfordshire Local 

Medical Committees gave a presentation which outlined the situation in 
respect of demand, capacity and activity in General Practice. These points, 
the statistics from the presentation and the resulting discussion are captured 

below. The original presentation slides are also appended to this report 
(Annex C).   

 
4. The British Medical Association (BMA) issued guidance to practices specifying 

that the average maximum amount of appointments which could be seen of a 

complex nature was 12 per day; when these were contacts of a simple nature 
the maximum number of safe appointments per day was 25. However, as is 

stood 34 appointments per day on average were being seen by BOB GPs.         
 

5. A local informal study was undertaken in 2014, analysing 15 GPs’ time spent in 

Medical Records for a half day session over one month in 2014. What was found 
was whilst contracted hours for a half day session were 4.1 hours, the actual 

Page 17



hours in medical records per GP per session were 06.39 hours and up to 7.24 
hours, equating to 60% - 78% of unresourced overtime per GP.    
 

6. BBO LMC’s data shows that 80% of all medical record entries are done outside 
of the consultation. As NHS England only captures clinical appointment data, it 

misses 80% of the work GPs do (when counting medical record entries). 
Enough time for administrative tasks is rarely adequately protected in practices. 
The BMA has released guidance specifying that for every 2 hours of clinical 

consultations, one hour of administrative work will be generated. 
 
‘A capacity Problem and not an access problem’. 

 
7. Dr Wood argued that an access problem would be characterised by available 

appointment slots going unfilled because patients could not access them to 
book them. However, available appointments for the day will often be booked 

completely in minutes and by many different routes – telephone, online, via 
Apps, via e-consultations, and on walk-ins. As such, access to general practice 
appointments is, arguably, excellent. The issue people face is where to find 

capacity when all those appointments are full. As such, the fundamental 
problem with ‘access’ is actually a ‘capacity’ problem. 

 
8. During 21-22: Across England there was a Net Loss of almost 2 GPs every day. 

However this is in contrast to an anticipated increase in population in 

Oxfordshire to 801,700 in 2028. (An increase of 16% from 2019 to 2028 as per 
the Oxfordshire CCG Estates Strategy).  
 

9. Whilst there had been a national promise of 6,000 more GPs nationally by 2024, 
it was felt that in fact that nationally 12,000 more GPs were needed nationally.  

 
10. At the workshop it was felt that a narrative that there was ‘A capacity problem 

and not an access problem’, wouldn’t resonate with the public.  This was 

something which was drawn out by the Healthwatch representative.  
 
Demand throughout Primary Care  

11. Across 10 BOB practices it was found that the equivalent of 3% of the entire 
population contacted their practice every working day. (Some registered-

patients contacted their practice multiple times in one day). This equated to 
69% of the population per month. 

 
Potential Resolutions and Good Practice  

12. The Local Medical Committee presentation identified 3 solutions for where 

demand on General Practice outstripped supply:  
a) Reduction of demand through methods such as education and 

prevention agendas.  
b) Increasing capacity by tackling workforce issues and increasing the 

amount of GPs and the use of additional roles. 

c) Changing Activity through methods such as:  
i. Clinical Triage 

Page 18



ii. Bottom Slicing and making use of Allied health professionals / 
Pharmacists.  

iii. Maximisation of efficiencies – for example use of telephone 

appointments and video consultations.  
 

13. In addition to the Local Medical Committees’ representative the workshop was 
attended by several Oxfordshire GPs, Healthwatch Oxfordshire, as well as a 
selection of HOSC members and local Councillors. From the resulting 

discussions following the presentation a number of key points were made and 
good practice shared:  

 
a) There were examples of good practice taking place at Woodlands 

Medical Centre where use of a nutritional therapist had been used as a 

tool to promote prevention; and where social prescribers had holistically 
worked with patients who had contacted their GP 20 times within one 

week, within the past year. This resulted in a 45% drop-in appointments 
made by the group.  

b) It was emphasised that in order to be effective social prescribers needed 

to be at the ‘front door’, of general practice. 
c) Clinical triage and the 111 service would have much more positive 

outcomes in relation to releasing the strain on demand if they were 
serviced by those with the necessary qualifications and knowledge. 
Clinical triage is most effective when it employs your best clinicians. 

d) There was a potential opportunity to make use of clinical triage on a 
larger scale; making use of economies of scale over the ICS area.  

e) Whilst ultimately tackling the social determinants of health may relieve 

some of the demand on General Practice; any new initiatives would entail 
a 5 to 10 year wait until they took effect.  

 

Collated Data and Statistics relating to increased populations and 
isolation in relation to Primary Care  

 
14. Appended to this report (Annex A) is a table detailing the results of the 

Oxfordshire GP Patient Survey (2022) to the question of whether respondents 
had experienced ‘feeling isolated from others’ over the last 12 months. It is 

also noted from the Oxfordshire Joint Strategic Needs Assessment that 
Oxfordshire was above the national average and Buckinghamshire and 
Berkshire West; in relation to the percentage of respondents who felt this way.  

 
15. Also appended to this report (Annex B) is a table which details registered 

patient numbers for 2014 and 2020 detailed in the Oxfordshire Clinical 
Commissioning Group Primary Care Estates Strategy 2020 – 2025; and 
registered patient numbers from NHS Digital (2022).  

 
16. These tables aim to inform the discussion in respect of Primary Care Estates 

and the use of additional roles, but should be considered with the wider 
information and report provided by the Integrated Care Board. 

 

Page 19



Corporate Policies and Priorities 

 
17. The report ties in with the Council’s Corporate Priority to prioritise the health 

and wellbeing of residents. 
 

Legal Implications 

 
18. The report does not have direct legal implications, but is evidence that the 

Council is carrying out its health scrutiny function pursuant to the Local Authority 
(Public Health, Health and Wellbeing Boards and Health Scrutiny) Regulations 

2013.  
 

Comments checked by: 

 
Richard Hodby, Solicitor richard.hodby@oxfordshire.gov.uk 

 

Financial Implications 

 
19. There are no financial implications arising from this report.   
 

Comments checked by: 
 
Lorna Baxter, Director of Finance.  

Staff Implications 

 

20. None immediately arising from this report. 

Equality & Inclusion Implications 

 
21. None immediately arising from this report. 

Sustainability Implications 

 
22. None immediately arising from this report. 

Risk Management 

 

23. There are limited risks arising from this Report 
 
 

 
Anita Bradley 

Director of Law and Governance  
 
Annex: Annex A – GP Patient Survey Isolation Results by Practice  

Page 20

mailto:richard.hodby@oxfordshire.gov.uk


Annex B – Registered Patient Numbers per Practice. 
Annex C – Local Medical Committee Presentation from Dr 

Richard Wood  

 
Background papers: Oxfordshire Primary Care Estates Strategy 2020- 2025 

(Oxfordshire Primary Care Estates Strategy 2020 - 2025 
v19.pdf (oxfordshireccg.nhs.uk) ) 

 

Contact Officer: Eddie Scott – Health Scrutiny Officer  
 

November 2022  
 
 

Page 21

https://www.oxfordshireccg.nhs.uk/documents/work%20programmes/Oxfordshire%20Primary%20Care%20Estates%20Strategy%202020%20-%202025%20v19.pdf
https://www.oxfordshireccg.nhs.uk/documents/work%20programmes/Oxfordshire%20Primary%20Care%20Estates%20Strategy%202020%20-%202025%20v19.pdf


This page is intentionally left blank



Annex A  - GP Patient Survey Results on Isolation Question  

Primary Care Network Practice  Response to the 
question ‘Have 
you experienced 

any of the 
following over 

the last 12 
months?’- feeling 
isolated from 

others’. 

Banbury Cross PCN Banbury Cross 
Health Centre 

10% 

Banbury Alliance PCN Hightown Surgery 9% 

Windrush Surgery 14% 

Woodlands 
Surgery 

11% 

North Oxfordshire Rural Alliance 

(NORA) 

Bloxham Surgery 6% 

Chipping Norton 
Health Centre 

11% 

Cropredy Surgery 6% 

Deddington Health 
Centre  

12% 

Wychwood 
Surgery 

7% 

Bicester PCN Alchester Medical 
Group  

9% 

Bicester Health 

Centre 

11% 

Montgomery 
House Surgery 

6% 

Kidlington, Islip, Woodstock and 

Yarnton (KIWY) PCN  

Gosford Hill 

Medical Centre  

9% 

Islip Surgery 9% 

The Key Medical 

Practice  

18% 

Woodstock 
Surgery  

11% 

City – East Oxford PCN Bartlemas Surgery 9% 

Cowley Road 
Medical Practice  

20% 

St Bartholomews 
Medical Centre  

18% 

St Clement’s 
Surgery 

24% 

City- OX3  Hedena Health 14% 

Page 23



Annex A  - GP Patient Survey Results on Isolation Question  

Manor Surgery 17% 

Oxford Central PCN 27 Beaumont 
Street 

32% 

28 Beaumont 

Street  

16% 

Jericho Health 
Centre 

17% 

King Edward St 

Medical Practice 

19% 

Observatory 
Medical Practice  

24% 

Healthier Oxford City Network 19 Beaumont 

Street Surgery 

23% 

Banbury Road 
Medical Centre  

7% 

Summertown 
Health Centre  

23% 

SE Oxfordshire Health Alliance  Donnington 
Medical 
Partnership 

11% 

Hollow Way 

Medical Centre  

9% 

Temple Cowley 
Health Centre  

14% 

The Leys Health 

Centre  

18% 

Henley Sonnet PCN Nettlebed Surgery 12% 

Sonning Common 
Health Centre  

11% 

The Bell Surgery 16% 

The Hart Surgery 5% 

Thame Chalgrove & 

Watlington 
Surgeries 

6% 

Morland House 

Surgery  

14% 

The Rycote 
Practice 

7% 

Wallingford and the Surrounds  Goring and 

Woodcote Medical 
Practice  

11% 

Mill Stream 
Surgery 

3% 

Wallingford 
Medical Practice 

15% 

Abingdon Central PCN Malthouse Surgery 12% 

The Abingdon 
Surgery 

12% 

Page 24



Annex A  - GP Patient Survey Results on Isolation Question  

Didcot PCN Didcot Health 
Centre Practice  

18% 

Oak Tree Health 

Centre 

14% 

Woodlands 
Medical Centre  

14% 

Wantage PCN Church Street 
Practice  

9% 

Newbury Street 
Practice  

14% 

White Horse Botley PCN Botley Medical 
Centre  

7% 

White Horse 

Medical Practice 

10% 

Eynsham and Witney Cogges Surgery 10% 

Eynsham Medical 
Group  

7% 

Nuffield Health 

Centre  

4% 

Windrush Medical 
Practice  

21% 

Rural West Oxfordshire Bampton Surgery 11% 

Broadshires 

Health Centre 

9% 

Burford Surgery 7% 

The Charlbury 
Medical Centre  

4% 

 

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



Annex B – Patient Numbers per Practice 
 
 

Primary Care 
Network 
 

 
 

Practice  Practice 
Patient 
Population 

(2014) as 
per 

Oxfordshire 
Primary 
Care 

Estates 
Strategy   

Practice 
Patient 
Population 

(2020) as 
per 

Oxfordshire 
Primary 
Care 

Estates 
Strategy   

Patients 
Registered 
at a GP 

Practice as 
of October 

2022 (NHS 
Digital)  

Banbury Cross 

PCN 

Banbury Cross 

Health Centre 

- - 41,463 

Banbury Alliance 

PCN 

Hightown 

Surgery 

- - 11,943 

Windrush 
Surgery 

- - 8,794 

Woodlands 

Surgery 

- - 8,368 

North Oxfordshire 
Rural Alliance 

(NORA) 

Bloxham 
Surgery 

7,153 7,902 8,117 

Chipping 

Norton Health 
Centre 

7,147 15,712 15,718 

Cropredy 
Surgery 

3,408 4,005 4,638 

Deddington 
Health Centre  

9,574 11,977 12,068 

Wychwood 
Surgery 

5,782 5,966 6,151 

Bicester PCN Alchester 

Medical Group  

16,853 20,320 21,227 

Bicester Health 
Centre 

12,430 15,035 16,068 

Montgomery 

House Surgery 

12,450 15,314 17,033 

Kidlington, Islip, 
Woodstock and 

Yarnton (KIWY) 
PCN  

Gosford Hill 
Medical Centre  

6,883 7,223 7,306   

Islip Surgery 5,859 5,952 6,441 

The Key 
Medical 

Practice  

12,487 13,057 13,190 

Woodstock 
Surgery  

9,203 9,094 9,331 

City – East Oxford 
PCN 

Bartlemas 
Surgery 

9,158 8,738 9,543 

Page 27



Annex B – Patient Numbers per Practice 
 
 

Cowley Road 

Medical 
Practice  

7,801 10,202 10,934 

St 
Bartholomews 

Medical Centre  

22,874 23,918 21,535 

St Clement’s 
Surgery 

4,448 5,263 5,673 

City- OX3  Hedena Health 19,528 29,374 29,199 

Manor Surgery 14,505 17,611 19,303 

Oxford Central 
PCN 

27 Beaumont 
Street 

6,382 7,505 7,609 

28 Beaumont 

Street  

4,732 5,553 5,961 

Jericho Health 
Centre 

6,396 9,489 10,078 

King Edward St 

Medical 
Practice 

4,335 5,849 - 

Observatory 
Medical 

Practice  

11,069 11,539 12,475 

Healthier Oxford 
City Network 

19 Beaumont 
Street Surgery 

14,329 16,430 17,261 

Banbury Road 

Medical Centre  

7,946 9,557 10,471 

Summertown 
Health Centre  

15,569 17,935 18,847 

SE Oxfordshire 

Health Alliance  

Donnington 

Medical 
Partnership 

14,880 13,337 12,915 

Hollow Way 
Medical Centre  

8,217 9,113 8,915 

Temple Cowley 
Health Centre  

7,893  8,099 8,306 

The Leys 
Health Centre  

10,805 10,701 11,242 

Henley Sonnet 

PCN 

Nettlebed 

Surgery 

3,585 4,057 4,314 

Sonning 
Common 

Health Centre  

8,543 9,848 9,860 

The Bell 
Surgery 

8,823 8,940 10,224 

The Hart 

Surgery 

10,212 10,542 10,659 

Page 28



Annex B – Patient Numbers per Practice 
 
 

Thame Chalgrove & 

Watlington 
Surgeries 

7,416 7,202  7,333 

Morland House 
Surgery  

10,551 11,027 11,323 

The Rycote 
Practice 

11,366 12,427 12,907 

Wallingford and the 
Surrounds  

Goring and 
Woodcote 

Medical 
Practice  

9,474 9,942 10,501 

Mill Stream 

Surgery 

4,770 5,440 5,627 

Wallingford 
Medical 

Practice 

16,459 17,121 17,948 

Abingdon Central 
PCN 

Malthouse 
Surgery 

18,781  17,292 17,431 

The Abingdon 
Surgery 

13,043 17,162 17,752 

Didcot PCN Didcot Health 

Centre Practice  

17,346 18,441 19,194 

Oak Tree 
Health Centre 

9,430 10,364 11,006 

Woodlands 

Medical Centre  

10,361 14,667 16,525 

Wantage PCN Church Street 
Practice  

12,918 14,978 17,465 

Newbury Street 

Practice  

11,378 15,471 15,714 

White Horse Botley 
PCN 

Botley Medical 
Centre  

15,417 15,600 13,461  

White Horse 

Medical 
Practice 

10,450 15,970 17,328 

Eynsham and 

Witney 

Cogges 

Surgery 

6,906 7,467 7,841 

Eynsham 
Medical Group  

13,659 14,221 15,541 

Nuffield Health 
Centre  

11,847 12,004 12,506 

Windrush 
Medical 
Practice  

14,337 18,176 19,892 

Rural West 

Oxfordshire 

Bampton 

Surgery 

8,156 8,665 9,906 

Broadshires 
Health Centre 

9,800 11,136 11,792 

Page 29



Annex B – Patient Numbers per Practice 
 
 

 

 
 
 

Burford 

Surgery 

6,604 6,643 7,096 

The Charlbury 
Medical Centre  

5,361 5,458 5,496 

Page 30



Demand, Capacity, and 
Activity in General Practice

Dr Richard Wood, CEO BBOLMC

P
age 31

ta839120
Typewritten Text
Annex C 



Demand

Wellbeing

Capacity Activity

e.g. Appointment 
counting, staffing levels, 
estates

e.g. In-coming call 
volumes, externally-
generated workflow

e.g. types of work we 
do, efficiency

The BBOLMC SitRep attempts to record measures in all three domains

P
age 32



Demand in General Practice

P
age 33



Estimating Demand

Broad-brush. Ten BBO practices (164K) – Jan to March 2022

• Equivalent of 3% of the entire population contact their practice every working 
day
• That’s c. 69% of the population per month

• HW survey: 86% contacted their GP in one month

• How many people who call 

need an appointment?

• 80-85%

P
age 34



Estimating Capacity

1. Appointments given

2. GP bums on seats

3. Time logged in to medical records system

P
age 35



Capacity: Appointments

GPAD: NHS Digital Data for BOB (Jan – Sept 2022):

There were enough appointments for 57% of the BOB population per 
month (Jan – Sept 2022)

https://app.powerbi.com/view?r=eyJrIjoiYzU2OTA2ODktZTIyNy00ODhmLTk1ZGEtOGVlZmRlZDNjYzY3IiwidCI6IjUwZjYwNzFmLWJiZmUtNDAxYS04ODAzLTY3Mzc0OGU2MjllMiIsImMiOjh9

P
age 36

https://app.powerbi.com/view?r=eyJrIjoiYzU2OTA2ODktZTIyNy00ODhmLTk1ZGEtOGVlZmRlZDNjYzY3IiwidCI6IjUwZjYwNzFmLWJiZmUtNDAxYS04ODAzLTY3Mzc0OGU2MjllMiIsImMiOjh9


Capacity: GP Appointments

P
age 37



Capacity: GP Appointments

BMA:
Complex 
Cases

P
age 38



Capacity: GP Appointments

BMA:
Simple 
Cases

P
age 39



Capacity: GP Appointments

BBO

P
age 40



Capacity: GP Bums On Seats

P
age 41



Capacity: GP Bums On Seats

P
age 42



Capacity: GP Bums On Seats

P
age 43



Capacity: GP Bums On Seats

2,919

P
age 44



Capacity: Time in Medical Records 

2014
15 Drs
1 month

P
age 45



Contracted Hours

04:10

Capacity: Time in Medical Records 

2014
15 Drs
1 month

P
age 46



Contracted Hours

Actual Hours

04:10

06:39

Capacity: Time in Medical Records 

2014
15 Drs
1 month

P
age 47



Contracted Hours

Actual Hours

04:10

06:39

?07:24

Capacity: Time in Medical Records 

60% - 78% 
overtime
(unresourced)

2014
15 Drs
1 month

P
age 48



21-22: Across England there was NET loss of almost two GPs every day1

By 2028 we will have an additional 110,300 pts (+/-16%) in Oxon2

This is not an access problem – this is a capacity problem

1. March 2021 – March 2022. https://www.bma.org.uk/advice-and-support/nhs-delivery-and-workforce/pressures/pressures-in-general-practice-data-analysis
2. https://www.oxfordshireccg.nhs.uk/documents/work%20programmes/Oxfordshire%20Primary%20Care%20Estates%20Strategy%202020%20-%202025%20v19.pdf (p7)

P
age 49

https://www.bma.org.uk/advice-and-support/nhs-delivery-and-workforce/pressures/pressures-in-general-practice-data-analysis
https://www.bma.org.uk/advice-and-support/nhs-delivery-and-workforce/pressures/pressures-in-general-practice-data-analysis
https://www.oxfordshireccg.nhs.uk/documents/work%20programmes/Oxfordshire%20Primary%20Care%20Estates%20Strategy%202020%20-%202025%20v19.pdf


Activity in General Practice
Two years of data (Nov 2020 – Oct 2022)

P
age 50



Intro & Methodology

• We count medical record entries per practice per week
• Consultations (telephone, Face-to-Face, home visits etc)
• Hospital letters (and other written communications) received
• Blood tests and other investigations read and filed
• Other (Administration) Entries

• We also ask practices to submit:
• Practice list size
• Number of GP ‘bums on seats’ sessions that week (1 GP session = one GP for 

half a day)
• Self-RAG rating

• Optional, confidential

P
age 51



Our search still underestimates work. It does not capture:

• Text messages to patients

• E-consultations (unless manually entered as a medical record entry)

• Medical record entries for patients who left the practice’s list before the 
search was initiated (e.g. recently died, or moved out of area)

• Medication requests processed

• Referrals (unless entered as a medical record entry in EMIS)

• ‘Task notes’

• ‘Externally Entered’ Work done outside of the practice – including CVP

• All practice work done outside of medical records

• Non-EMIS practices

P
age 52



• 60 practices (25%), covering a population of 793,420 patients

• 1,602 weekly searches 

• Data covering 15 Nov ‘20 to 02 Oct ‘22 

P
age 53



P
age 54



P
age 55



P
age 56



P
age 57



• 81% of all activity is outside of the consultation

• All of this is missed by national activity data (GPAD)

106% increase from Nov ‘20 to Dec ‘21

P
age 58



Allied Health Professional Input

c.9.5% 
decrease

P
age 59



Demand

Wellbeing

Capacity Activity

• There are enough 
appointments for 57% of 
the BOB population per 
month

• GP daily appnts are nearly 
double BMA-
recommended (34)

• Average list size is 2,919: 
45% larger than ‘safe’ (pre-
additional roles scheme)

3% of our population 
call their practice every 
working day (69% per 
month)

• 81% of all medical record 
entries take place outside 
of the consultation

• The proportion of allied 
health professional 
consultations has 
increased by 10% over 2 
years

P
age 60



When demand outstrips supply
1. Reduce Demand – education, (public health), et al

2. Increase capacity – make GP attractive, use additional roles, et al

3. Change Activity
i. Clinical Triage

o Adv: prioritise the sickest and those who need a F2F

o Disadv: Reason for attendance given in advance (apps, e-consult, receptionist), fewer set 
appointment times, not every request is honoured in the way the pt would like

ii. Bottom-Slicing
o AHPs, Apps etc

iii. Maximise Efficiency
o >90% of diagnoses are made on history alone. An exam rarely changes diagnosis or 

management plan

o Telephone calls: 8mins; F2F 14-mins; Video consults somewhere in-between

P
age 61



- END -

Effective Interventions Need to:

1. Reduce Demand

2. Increase Capacity

3. Make activity more efficient

P
age 62



P
age 63



Healthwatch Recommendations

1) Communications infrastructure (e.g. telephone systems, online tools)

2) More care navigators and reception staff

3) More staff at peak hours (8am-11am)

4) Allow more calls at other times (including extended hours) 

5) Enable more booking ahead for non-urgent appnts

P
age 64



HW Recommendations
Recommendation Potential impact

Communications infrastructure (e.g. 
telephone systems, online tools)

Increases access into the practice but not 
capacity to meet it

More care navigators and reception staff Would increase demand into the practice, 
and also some capacity to meet it

More staff at peak hours (8am-11am) Would increase capacity (but difficult to 
employ)

Allow more calls at other times (including 
extended hours) 

Increases demand into the practice but not 
capacity to meet it

Enable more booking ahead for non-urgent 
appnts

Reduces ability to triage and the potential 
to threatened clinical safety. Not enough 
for urgents: pr risk and staff burn-out

P
age 65



East Berks West Berks Bucks Oxon BBO

Average No. of Pts in Practice Population FTE GP 3,288 2,792 2,651 3,032 2,919 

GP Sessions per 10,000 Patients 28 35 40 32 34

*Average number of daily EMIS entries done by the practice per GP 
present per day 230 214 238 235 229

Total EMIS Entries by a GP per Day 58 51 49 57 54

Total Clinical Encounters by a GP per Day 34 32 31 36 34

Proportion of all practice Clinical Encounters Entered by a GP 64% 72% 83% 82% 77%

Proportion of EMIS entries that are admin-related 80% 78% 84% 82% 81%

Estimated No. of Clinical Encounters (by any clinician) per Pt per Year 3.3 3.8 3.5 3.5 3.6

P
age 66



Red Amber Green

Proportion of Practice-Weeks Declaring RAG Rating 8.1% 57.9% 33.8%

Carr-Hill 0.9338 0.9563 0.9446

Pts per GP Session 407 336 303

GP Sessions per 10,000 Pts 27 34 35

Est. Number of Clinical Encounters per Patient per Year 4.6 3.6 3.2

P
age 67



In Summary

Demand:

• Equivalent of 3% of our population call their practice every working day (69% per 
month) 

Capacity:

• There are enough appointments for 57% of the BOB population per month

• GP daily appnts are nearly double BMA-recommended

• Average list size is 2,919: 45% larger than ‘safe’ (pre-additional roles scheme)

Activity:

• 81% of all medical record entries take place outside of the consultation

• The proportion of allied health professional consultations has increased by 10%
over 2 years

P
age 68



Agenda

1) Demand

2) Capacity

3) Activity

4) Adaptions and Solution Approaches

P
age 69



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Oxfordshire Improvement Programme 
System HOSC up date 
November 2022

P
age 71

A
genda Item

 6



Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Berkshire West Integrated Care Board

Oxfordshire Integrated Improvement Programme: Winter 22-23

2

Urgent & Same-Day Care Programme OHFT + OUHFT Provider Collaborative Oxfordshire Community Services Strategy 
Project support 

provided by

Oxfordshire ICB Collaboration of Oxford Health NHS FT & 

Oxford University Hospitals NHS FT

Oxford Health NHS Foundation Trust

Exec Sponsors Sam Foster (Chair, Oxfordshire Integrated Leadership Board)

Dan Leveson (Managing Director for Place, BOB ICB

Karen Fuller (Interim Director of Adult Social Care, OCC)

Prof Meghana Pandit & Dr Nick Broughton (CEOs)

Sam Foster & Dr Ben Riley (Trust Exec Leads)

Dr Nick Broughton (CEO, OHFT)

Dr Ben Riley (Managing Director for Primary, Community 

& Dental Care, OHFT)

Programme Leads 

(Point of Contact)

Lily O’Connor (Director of Urgent Care Oxfordshire, BOB ICB) Hannah Iqbal (Director of Strategy & Partnerships, 

OUHFT)

Helen Shute (Comm. Services Prog. Director, OHFT)

Helen Shute (Comm. Services Prog. Director, OHFT)

Prevention & 

Planned Care

Providing better support for those who live at home: Social 

Prescribing & Oxfordshire Way

Anticipatory care

Primary Care virtual care

Review and update of joint podiatry and diabetes 

foot care pathway

Community Hospital Outpatients Pilot (Wantage CH), 
focusing on improving eye health, ENT, hearing and 
mental health & wellbeing (children & adults)

Community Vaccination Service for school-aged children, 

the immobile and vulnerable groups

Sustainable 7-day Community Nursing and Therapy 

services (adults)

Care close to home 

at the time of need

Further development of Urgent Care Centre in Banbury Joined-up care from coordinated Urgent 

Community Response, CARe and Hospice@Home

teams, reducing duplication

Integrated 24-hour community urgent care service 

(strengthening GP out-of-hours and minor injuries 

services)

Urgent Community response Developing Hospital-at-Home teams into enhanced 

North, Central & South Oxfordshire virtual ward 

teams (with PML)

Acute virtual wards (adults & children) Sustainable and consistent same-day ambulatory 

care capability to support the acute virtual wards

Patient flow, 

discharge & 

recovery

Multi-partner Transfer of Care Team Modernising Community Hospital inpatient care and 

resolving the future of Wantage CH inpatient unit

Better Care Fund plan Developing the community Single Point of Access into a 

care coordination centre

P
age 72



Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Berkshire West Integrated Care Board

Oxfordshire system integrated improvement 
programme funding and PMO support

3

Funding bid for Regional funding

Transfer of Care team £500,000

Development of Acute virtual wards (Hospital @Home) 1.6 million – £628,000 released to date

Development of Primary care virtual wards 1.2 million

Project Management support

BOB ICB Virtual ward PMO and governance

Oxon UEC team Oxon adult acute/Primary Care and children's 

virtual wards

Recovery and Patient flow Price Waterhouse Cooper (PWC) 

P
age 73



Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Berkshire West Integrated Care Board

Oxfordshire system integrated improvement programme
4

Working with Care Homes to support decision making before and after  calling 999 services. 

LIVING WELL: PROVIDING 
BETTER SUPPORT FOR 

THOSE WHO LIVE AT 
HOME

RIGHT CARE IN THE 
RIGHT PLACE AT THE 
RIGHT TIME: PRIMARY 

CARE AND ACUTE 
VIRTUAL WARDS

PROVIDING CARE AND 
TREATMENT TO REDUCE 

THE NEED FOR THE 
PERSON TO BE 

ADMITTED TO HOSPITAL 
ADULTS AND CHILDREN.

FURTHER DEVELOPMENT 
OF URGENT CARE 

CENTRE ON THE HORTON 
GENERAL HOSPITAL SITE

ALIGNING DEMAND AND 
CAPACITY- RECOVERY 

AND FLOW

P
age 74



Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Berkshire West Integrated Care Board

5

Bicester PCN

Primary Care enhanced service (Primary Care virtual 

ward 

Bicester PCN virtual ward have 

• Recruited a virtual ward coordinator

• Contracted Age UK to see all those in the VW,

• Developed a strong working relationship with PML visiting service 

• Working with discharge team in OUHFT on the follow up required for 

Bicester patients due to be discharged from the acute

• Working with H@H services to step up and down patients to and from 

the acute virtual ward

• Developed pathways to maintain people in their own home. 

Oxford City PCN Primary Care Virtual ward

Oxford City PCN’s have started the enhanced service as described 

above for Bicester but at an earlier stage in the programme.

Improving peoples lives and wellbeing

Age UK working with health and social care to help establish 

what matters to individuals 

Focussing on reducing loneliness and getting people more 

active to improve their mobility

. 

Ambulance handovers 

OUHFT have worked in partnership with 

SCAS to minimise ambulance handover 

delays. There is a renewed focus in working 

with ambulance providers to ensure they are 

able to respond to those who are waiting for 

an ambulance.Urgent Community Response

Urgent Community Response (UCR) supported 

patients to have their initial assessment and 

treatment in their own home – avoiding a hospital 

admission. If the person requires ongoing care they 

refer to H@H acute Virtual ward. 

Acute Virtual ward (Hospital @ Home) 

Take referrals from 999, NHS 111, ED’s EMU’s 

GP’s and health Care  Professionals 

Delivering care that can be delivered in secondary 

care in the patients own home

Achieved above trajectory assessing and treating  

an additional 33% of people in their own home.

People who fall at home 

People, families , 999, NHS 111 and Health Care 

Professional s can refer to Urgent Community 

Response for an assessment within 2hrs or two 

days. 

Achievement highlights Oxfordshire April 2022 – October 2022

Transfer of Care team

• Set up an Oxfordshire transfer of Care 

team to focus on the individual person and 

valuing time i.e., changing the culture from 

days away from home instead of length of 

stay in hospital

• Monitoring the length of time on each 

pathway and how we can reduce the time 

waiting.

• Working with Age UK, county council 

teams and home first to support who 

require support to return home 

P
age 75



Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Berkshire West Integrated Care Board

Communications campaign activity and materials
6

The following campaigns and activity will run throughout the winter months using national materials where 

available and appropriate to our system requirements as well as tailored campaigns for place as required. 

A Communications Resource is being set up on a website with 
resources for the public and health care professionals containing 
resources to encourage sharing via social media channels and 
websites.
Information for the public on health matters relating to maintaining 
independence, heating and resources to maintain peoples safety in 
their own home. 

P
age 76



Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Berkshire West Integrated Care Board

Channels of Communications

• Schools, nurseries and children’s centres

• Town & Parish Councils website and social media

• Bus & bus stop advertising

• Paid advertising on specific websites as indicated

• Community  / parish noticeboard 

7

As outlined previously we have bespoke designed materials to support all localised winter messaging. This 
covers leaflets, social media posts, large design and hard copy materials. Our communications channels 
include:

• All ICB Facebook, Twitter, Nextdoor and Place Instagram advertising

• Health provider websites and social media

• Community and third sector networks

• Faith groups networks

• Local authority outreach teams

• Local authority websites and social media

• Local media (incl advertising)

• Social media (incl paid Facebook advertising)

• Digital and online channels

• GP websites

• GP text messaging to patients

• E-newsletters / place e-magazines

• Websites and social media of charities and partner organisations such as 
Healthwatch

• Libraries

P
age 77



Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Berkshire West Integrated Care Board

Live well- Improving people's health and wellbeing

People’s health and wellbeing are determined mostly by a range of social, economic, and 
environmental factors, social prescribing seeks to address people’s needs in a holistic way. It also 
aims to support individuals to take greater control of their own health. 

In Oxfordshire, the development of Social Prescribing is a priority in the Joint Health & Wellbeing 
Strategy as a means of Improving Health by Tackling Wider Issues. Specifically, it was one of the 
areas of focus for the Health Improvement Board to meet its aim to 

• Create healthy communities where people of all ages can maintain and improve 
their health as they live, learn, work, and socialise.

Outcomes

19 out of 20 Primary Care Networks now employ Social Prescribing Link Workers either directly or 
via voluntary and community sector organizations. Overall referrals are increasing from 2020/21 to 
2021/22 and a change in the age profile: 

a. In 2021/22 there was a total of 7,552 patients referred to Social Prescribing in 
Oxfordshire. Almost two thirds (62%) of patients referred were female and 38% were 
male.

b. Between 2020/21 and 2021/22 there was an increase in the number of younger 

people and a decrease in the number of older people referred.

8

Further initiatives

a. Improving our response to Carers, to people with mental health 

problems, to people living with learning disability and/or autism; 

helping with practical issues as well as building up that individual 

resilience to deliver 16b above. 

b. Developing our information and advice offer Live Well Oxfordshire 

to increase the options and resources available to the public and 

to social prescribers

c. Increasing community capacity, social capital and capability and 

the ability of our communities to “grow their own” in terms of the 

things that will help keep the local population connected and well. 

This forms a key part of the Oxfordshire Better Care Fund 

2022/23 plan

P
age 78



Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Berkshire West Integrated Care Board

Themes from social prescribing
9

The common themes across 
these different Social Prescribing 

approaches are a focus on 
addressing key risks to long-term 
health and wellbeing outcomes

•Combating isolation and increasing the sense of 
connectedness

•Mental wellbeing

•Physical wellbeing, especially physical activity

•Practical resources that can address specific risk factors (e.g., 
debt advice, housing issues, fuel and other forms of poverty) 
which contribute to the wider determinants of ill-health

The range of different models for 
Social Prescribing in Oxfordshire 

are built around key inputs

•Need for good quality, accessible, information and advice that 
can support self-help and act as a touch point for professionals 
and other referrers

•Co-produced, person-centred approaches to planning: what is 
important to the individual and how do they meet their 
individual challenges

•Practical support and navigation to enable people to access 
community resources when they cannot do so themselves

•Community resources and social capital that people can use to 
help them develop and achieve their personal plans

P
age 79



Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Berkshire West Integrated Care Board

Social prescribing - stories of difference

• Mrs Chan has a long 
term health condition
• Referred by GP because 
she was isolated and 
lonely. She is Cambodian, 
and her first language is 
not English.
• Several ‘what matters to 
you’ conversations helped 
establish a goal for Mrs 
Chan. 

Goal: meeting people & 
establishing friendships 

• Introduced to a Health Walk - she 
was chatty and enjoyed it

• Introduced to two welcoming 
social groups, which she liked

•The University's Cambodian 
Society helped us identify a 
volunteer to make regular weekly 
phone calls to Mrs Chan. 

Making 
connections  • Mrs Chan has made 

some friends, feels less 
lonely and is happier.  

• She is ready for her 
next goal of using 
volunteer transport to 
increase her 
independence.  

Outcomes: 
increased social 
connections & 
independence  

• Mrs Stokes is in her 80s 
& lives alone. Fear of 
falling meant she lost 
confidence to go out 
alone and she struggled 
at home and was 
unable to use the bath.

• She feels very isolated.

• Mrs Stokes is waiting 
for a physio 
appointment. 

Goal: getting out and 
about safely

• Introduced to Move Together 
and home based gentle exercise 
has increased her confidence 
and mobility. She now walks 
confidently into town. 

• Referred for home equipment & 
is now able to use the bath  

• Referred for benefits advice and 
to Home Library Service. 

Making 
connections  • Mrs S is able to get 

out and about safely 
and to cope more 
confidently at home. 

• She is ready for her 
next goal of being 
introduced to local 
groups to make new 
friendships.  

Outcomes: 
increased mobility, 

confidence  & 
independence  

P
age 80



Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Berkshire West Integrated Care Board

Right Care, Right Place Right time
11

• Delivery of key system initiatives that assure “right care, right place, right time” as set out in the Better Care Fund plan and
the system urgent care Integrated Improvement Plan. This will help manage demand on our health and care services.

i. Supporting primary care with at risk populations, especially in terms of physical activity and mental wellbeing

ii. Providing person-centred alternative forms of support for people who are at risk of hospital admission, or who 
have recently been discharged from hospital and are being supported by health and care in “virtual wards”. A 
strengths-based assessment has been shown to reduce the demand for care by identifying the things that are 
important to the person, and which may be provided outside of formal NHS or Council care

Person at home – routine care

Person needs have changed- assessment/treatment 

and monitoring within Primary Care virtual ward

Patient not recovering- referred to Hospital @ Home 

(Acute Virtual ward)

Referred and seen in Same Day Emergency Care 

unit for further diagnostics

Discharge planning

Identify complex people for referral to Primary 

Care for ongoing assessment and monitoring

MDT discharge planning with Primary Care 

virtual ward team 

Person return home with or without support

P
age 81



Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Berkshire West Integrated Care Board

Peoples stories

“Thank you for 

keeping my mum 

at home and 

avoiding her 

going to A&E”

Patient story

I turned too quick, fell 

over, ended up in the 

shower 

Pressed the buzzer and the 

ambulance arrived.

They wanted me to go t hospital 

but I did not want to go. They 

called a nurse to see me at home

Two nurses arrived, gave me a full 

assessment, made an 

appointment for the next day with 

my GP, referred me to AGE UK 

and the falls service

I was really happy to stay at 

home and I got such a good 

service 

FR in hospital for 

28 days-

discharged home 

son main carer

Picked up by 

Bicester primary 

care virtual care 

ward 

Hospital bed 

organised, visited 

daily by H@H, 

Reviewed by GP 

at home

Treatment 

escalation plan 

agreed with patient 

and son. 

Patient died with 

dignity, peacefully 

at home

80yr old 

widower

Called 999 

with 

shortness of 

breath

999 advised 

hospital 

admission, 

declined 

admission

Supported at 

home with 

H@H but 

deteriorated 

and admitted 

to hospital 

17 days in 

hospital 

discharged 

to Primary 

care virtual 

care ward  

Person happy 

to be at home 

with follow up 

support 

Follow up with 

H@H 

Follow up 

investigations 

in the home 

P
age 82



Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Berkshire West Integrated Care Board

Oxford Virtual Ward Data by Provider

13

The  has plan  been pro rated from Monthly to Fortnightly to allow for 

monitoring next to Foundry submissions. Oxford Health has been unable to 

report since  August.

Increase in PML discharges, but admissions were lower

5
8

61 61

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

15/07/22 29/07/22

Oxford Health Virtual Ward

Oxford Health - Occupancy Oxford Health - Discharge

P
age 83



Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Berkshire West Integrated Care Board

Children's Virtual Ward

14

Actions & Progress

• GP Webinar to present new wheeze pathway 29.10.22

• OPAT processes review

• Networking with key teams to improve processes and increase referral rates

• Bid submitted via CHA re funding for pilot -tech enabled virtual wards, remote monitoring 

and Multi system platform (will apply to respiratory pathways)

• PGD review and planning

• Work with comms -Review of OH CC H@H website and resources

• Progression to enable OPAT Medication dispensing process to move to CCN Localities

• Stakeholder meetings and planning  underway for Porting and Delivery of EPNS Ma 

Module (Enhanced Paediatric Nursing Skills) 

Planned Actions

• Progression of new pathways- Wheeze (Non Continuous Remote monitoring and With 

Continuous Remote monitoring), Jaundice

• Leaflets and pathways to be Trust approved and uploaded to Website

• Setup daily virtual ward rounds as volumes increase.

• Further Exploration/scoping of remote monitoring models

• Teaching for new staff/ update of EPR processes with OUH Teams

• Medications for OPAT to be available in CCN Localities 

• Staff to commence eLearning for EPNS for surge (respiratory enhanced skills)

• SOP and Governance document to be agreed
 

  
Los - Hrs on CAOAH 
Ward 

LOS - days on CAOAH Ward (Acute 
Bed Days Saved) 

Value of Bed Days Saved 
(based on £350 per bed day) 

Sep-21 52 2 £700.00 

Oct-21 2145 89 £31,150.00 

Nov-21 1100 46 £16,100.00 

Dec-21 2386 99 £34,650.00 

Jan-22 2371 99 £34,650.00 

Feb-22 919 38 £13,300.00 

Mar-22 2515 105 £36,750.00 

Apr-22 1481 62 £21,700.00 

May-22 1950 81 £28,437.50 

Jun-22 1464 61 £21,350.00 

Jul-22 1838 77 £26,804.17 

Aug-22 1309 55 £19,089.58 

Sep-22 1321 55 £19,264.58 

Total 20851 869 £304,164.58 

P
age 84



Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Berkshire West Integrated Care Board

PML Urgent Care Centre Horton General Hospital

15

Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct Total

ED 279 380 393 483 411 462 450 478 681 4017

111 68 114 172 126 111 98 129 428 252 1489

OOH 172 317 138 201 299 368 1495

GP 
Practice

107 391 397 447 525 715 723 923 1107 4228

Grand Total 11238

• Number of people triaged/seen to date 

FEB MAR APR MAY JUNE JULY AUG SEPT OCT

Consult UCC 445 883 962 1237 1344 1413 1486 2128 2402

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500
Total number of consultations in UCC

Consult UCC

28%

4%

8%
32%

6%

7%

14%

Total Appointments Oct by type

Emergency Patients (681)

NHS 111 F2F (106)

OOH F2F (204)

Practice F2F (761)

NHS 111 Tel (146)

OOH Telephone (164)

Practice Telephone (347)

P
age 85



Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Berkshire West Integrated Care Board

Ambulance Handover Delays

• Handover delays at the JR have stabilised. Arrivals and handovers were on a par to the previous month and the number of >30 mins and <60 mins delays 
increased slightly.

• Communication between South Central Ambulance Service (SCAS), OUHFT and Urgent Community Response (UCR) has been excellent and referrals to 
alternative clinical pathways have increased.

• OUHFT continues to provide an ambulance handover nurse; in addition to this, a second ambulance nurse has been provided at peak times to reduce the reliance 
on a Hospital Ambulance Liaison Officer (HALO). This has had a direct positive impact on releasing resources within SCAS to be back out in the community.

• Patient safety and experience for patients delayed remains a focus of high priority across the Trust.
• Geography and infrastructure on the JR site, with the multiple areas receiving patients directly from SCAS, is a continuing challenge.
• Work continues within the Ambulance Handovers Task & Finish group to minimise delays. High volume of conveyances in the evenings continues to be the most 

challenging time.

P
age 86



Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Berkshire West Integrated Care Board

4 and 12-hour ED Performance

ED 4-hr performance has deteriorated over several months despite steady 
attendance figures. 'Wait to be seen' is the most significant breach 
reason. Despite attendance figures remaining steady, there is a peak in 
activity in the evening and into the night.

ED 12-hr total length of stay performance has remained above the national 
target despite an improved position earlier in the year. Long waits to be seen 
and flow out of the ED are the main factors contributing to this position.

High occupancy within the wards on the John Radcliffe site and delayed 
discharges for medically optimised patients have significantly impacted flow 
within the Hospital.

Children's and General Surgery have also been challenged.

17

P
age 87



Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Berkshire West Integrated Care Board

Patients Medically Optimised For Discharge 
OUHFT

There has been a steady increase in the number of patients who do not meet the criteria to 
reside that are delayed waiting for services to support discharge (Pathways 1-3) over the 
past 2 years.

The length of time these patients are delayed has also increased, contributing to a 
significant number of bed days.

Several factors have contributed to this increase:

- A change in reablement provider and the criteria for accessing the service.

- A subsequent increase in referrals to social care - Management and process of 
referrals (linear).

- Covid outbreaks within the Short Stay Hub Bed providers leading to bed closures.

- Closure of one Short Stay Hub Bed unit.

- Workforce challenges across domiciliary providers .

- The removal of the Hospital Discharge Programme post-Covid.

- Inability to implement a ‘Discharge to Assess’ at home approach.

P
age 88



Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Berkshire West Integrated Care Board

UCR (Care team) – cumulative (April to September 2022)

Total patients 787 

Total discharges 728 

Average of LoS (discharged patients only) 11 days 

Cumulative Virtual Bed Days 9233 days 

Notional Bed Day Savings £3,231.6K 

Home Hospice Care (April to September 2022)

Total patients 209

Total discharges 200

Average of LOS (discharged patients only) 11 days

Cumulative Virtual Bed Days 2364 days

Notional Bed Day Saving £827.4k

P
age 89



Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Berkshire West Integrated Care Board

Reablement Outcomes

P
age 90

https://app.powerbi.com/groups/me/reports/03417ac1-5d1b-493c-8134-c88e16b3373b/?pbi_source=PowerPoint


Home Care by number of people and hours paid

1940

1960

1980

2000

2020

2040

2060

2080

2100

2120

A
p

r 
2

0
2

1

M
ay

 2
0

2
1

Ju
n

 2
0

2
1

Ju
l 2

0
2

1

A
u

g 
2

0
2

1

Se
p

 2
0

2
1

O
ct

 2
0

2
1

N
o

v 
2

0
2

1

D
ec

 2
0

2
1

Ja
n

 2
0

2
2

Fe
b

 2
0

2
2

M
ar

 2
0

2
2

A
p

r 
2

0
2

2

M
ay

 2
0

2
2

Ju
n

 2
0

2
2

Ju
l 2

0
2

2

A
u

g 
2

0
2

2

Se
p

 2
0

2
2

O
ct

 2
0

2
2

Home Care - count of persons

23500

24000

24500

25000

25500

26000

A
p

r 
2

0
2

1

M
ay

 2
0

2
1

Ju
n

 2
0

2
1

Ju
l 2

0
2

1

A
u

g 
2

0
2

1

Se
p

 2
0

2
1

O
ct

 2
0

2
1

N
o

v 
2

0
2

1

D
ec

 2
0

2
1

Ja
n

 2
0

2
2

Fe
b

 2
0

2
2

M
ar

 2
0

2
2

A
p

r 
2

0
2

2

M
ay

 2
0

2
2

Ju
n

 2
0

2
2

Ju
l 2

0
2

2

A
u

g 
2

0
2

2

Se
p

 2
0

2
2

O
ct

 2
0

2
2

Quantity - hours paid

Quantity

P
age 91



Actions to increase 
capacity and reduce the 
number of people in bed 
based care to return home

• The New Starter Grant will be available from November. This is being promoted and the 
effectiveness of this should be realised in the coming weeks in terms of increase in new care staff 

• Efforts are ongoing to promote “Care Friends” recruitment app. Provider take up rate will be 
reported in the near future.  

• Continued efforts in reaching out to the provider market to attract new providers onto the 
framework 

• Ongoing engagement with providers of Assistive Technology (AT) and effective solutions have 
been identified. 

• 3 pilots are planned on the homefirst pathway: medication management in the community; Just 
Checking and Geniecare to promote independence in the home through AT monitoring

• Encourage providers to adopt successful practice such as international recruitment  

• Ongoing contract monitoring and management of providers 

• Actively working with voluntary / community groups to support service delivery

• MDT are working pro-actively with shadow and zonal providers to improve the business 
processes to reduce referral and pick-up times. Contact list, reablement training strengthening 
relationshaip   

P
age 92



Oxon HWBB BCF funding 
and plan 2022-23

P
age 93



Approach to BCF 2022/23

Priority areas for BCF 
plan

• Winter/surge capacity

• Conveyance/admission 
avoidance

• Improving discharge pathways

• Addressing health inequalities, 
including in hospital pathways

• Integrating care and support 
around people in their own 
home

• Unpaid carers and prevention

Alignment to 
Oxfordshire 
Integrated 

Improvement 
Plan

Identifying wider, 
preventative 

approaches to 
improving 

outcomes and 
managing 
demand

Identifying 
transformational 
projects in line 

with anticipated 2 
year BCF 
planning 

approach from 
2023-25

P
age 94



Increasing prevention capacity within BCF

Expansion of community capacity 
and capability programme 
focussed on independence, 
isolation and physical activity: 

• mapping, identifying gaps for communities at 
risk of health inequalities, targeting grants 
and community development approaches

Developing Oxfordshire’s approach to social 
prescribing: building on and out from the NHS 
model and integrating what is already there 

jointly with PCN and the VCSE

Improving prevention around falls 
jointly with Public Health and the 

VCSE

Expanding our offer to Carers, 
especially around practical support 

Developing data collection and evaluation that 
evidences impact on key BCF metrics

P
age 95



Better Care Fund Metrics: proposed trajectories for 
ratification by Oxfordshire Improvement Leadership Board 

26

19/20 20/21 21/22

Plan Actual Plan Actual Plan Actual Plan Actual

1
Unplanned hospitalisation for chronic ambulatory 

care sensitive conditions
745.1 622 734.4 720 175 185 350 535 720

Plan assumes 2% improvement; 6% weighting to last 

6 months for winter. M4 performance showed a 

significant reduction in NEL and this is under review: a 

more stretching target may be indicated in line with 

the impact of UCR and virtual ward activity.

3
% of people who are discharged from acute hospital 

to their normal place of residence
91.3 90.3 91.5 93% 93% 90.5% 93% 93% 93%

Proposed trajectory is carried forward from 2021/22. 

Actions in place to improve allocation to discharge 

pathways; diversion from P1 to P0; and from P2 to 

P1 within a Home First ethos and practice. 

4

Long term support needs of older people met by 

admission to residential and nursing care homes per 

100,000 population

597 442 370 352 85 67 170 261 352

370 admissions per 100,000 population - 481 

admissions. A 5% decrease would be 457 admissions 

in the year (a rate of 352). 7% weighting to last 6 

months for winter. Performance already in top quartile 

nationally

5

% of older people (65+) who were still at home 91 

days after discharge from hospital into reablement / 

rehabilitation services

67.2% 62.0% 81.0% 84% 84%

Measure is only of people discharged Oct-Dec each 

year. Significant improvement last year. National 

average 79%. 84% top quartile performance

n/a

Notes

Actual Actual Actual
Annual 

Plan

22/23

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

P
age 96



BCF 2022-23 schemes for OLIB ratification 
Area Schemes Funding (draft)

Additional beds and 

medical support

Designated beds extension to 20 WW (OCC) [winter]

Medical cover to interim beds (ICB) [winter]
250,000

Admission 

avoidance

Extended UCR capacity (OHFT) [long-term]

Additional EMU capacity (OHFT) [winter]

SALT input into care homes (OHFT) [pilot]

Increased MS capacity (OUH) [pilot]

Step up capacity for homeless people in ED (Oxford City) [pilot]

407,000

ED capacity Extended mental health capacity (OHFT) [winter-?needs to move to BAU]

Additional patient transport 0600-1200 7 days (SCAS) [winter-?needs to move to BAU]
108,000

Discharge capacity Additional discharge liaison capacity (CYP and out of area) [winter]

Additional discharge co-ordination in surgical wards [winter]

7 day brokerage support for discharge [winter]

Trusted assessor [winter initiative leading to long-term commitment]

Extra Care Housing deployment to support P1 discharges [pilot]

Investment in P2: assistive technology, 7 day therapy, NH staffing [long-term, new model]

318,000

Health inequalities Mapping and gap analysis of complex needs pathways to support homeless people [pilot] 30,000

Prevention and 

support to carers

Extended dementia support service and improved dementia education for carers [long-term]

Improved respite and support for carers to support admission avoidance and discharge flow 

[long-term]

156,000

Sub-total £1.269m

Surge provision (beds if not funded by NHSEI) and to be 

allocated
£1.2m

P
age 97



Integrated Care Improvement Programme and winter surge plan -Next steps 

• There is confusion as to the best place for a health care professional should refer a person 

• We continue to have multiple entry points which leads to some of the ambiguity.

• Action

• Webinar with Healthcare professionals and GP’s being set up to capture all the issues 
and solution focussed.

• Continue to recruit to increase capacity 7 days a weeks

• Planning to increase hours covered from 20:00hrs to 02:00hrs

Further development of pathways to maintain people 
in their own home 

• Realtime feedback from people and their families and providers to continue to learn and 
change to improve processes. 

• Development and implementation of discharge to assess i.e., assessing people in their 
own home.

Further development of the Transfer of care HUB to 
reduce the time people are away from home

New programme of work with care Homes

Single access point with clinical support initially 08:00-20:00hrs  seven days a week

Deployment of UCR/H@H team to the care home to provide assessment and additional 

support to avoid transferring the person to hospital

P
age 98



 

1 
 

 

 
  
 

Meeting: Health, Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

 

Date of Meeting   24th November 2022 

Title of Paper   Community Mental Health Framework Overview 

Lead Directors 

Katrina Anderson (Service Director, Oxfordshire, 

BaNES, Swindon & Wiltshire Mental Health 

Directorate – Oxford Health) 

Dr Rob Bale (Clinical Director, Oxfordshire, 

BaNES, Swindon & Wiltshire mental Health 

Directorate – Oxford Health) 

Author(s) 

Debbie Walton (Head of Service, Adult & Older 

Adult Mental Health – Oxford Health) 

 

Laura Carter (Head of Service Change and 

Delivery - Oxford Health) 

Paper Type To NOTE 

Action Required None 

 
 

 
Executive Summary   

 

The Community Mental Health Framework (CMHF) and associated transformation funding gives 

a significant opportunity to improve the offer to people with Severe Mental Illness (SMI) across 

Oxfordshire.  

 

The purpose of the CMHF Programme is to deliver radical change in the design of community 

mental health care for adults and older adults.  

 

This will be achieved by moving towards joined up care, designed using a whole population 

approach, whilst establishing a revitalised purpose and identity for community mental health 

services.  

 

This paper provides an overview of the CMHF Framework, the new model for Oxfordshire and 

the Programme delivery to date.  

 

 

Page 99

Agenda Item 7



 

2 
 

 

1. Background and local context 

Adult Mental Health Teams (AMHTs) 

Oxfordshire currently has three AMHTs which cover North & West Oxon, City and NE Oxon 

and South Oxon.  

 

Since 2014, Oxfordshire’s AMHTs have worked to a 7 day a week model (7am – 9pm) 

covering both the traditional Community Mental Health Team (CMHT) and Crisis Resolution 

and Home Treatment team (CRHTT) models. 

 

 In 2020, it was decided that Oxfordshire needed a standalone CRHTT service, as the AMHTs 

struggled to provide both functions to the expected level.  In 2021, the directorate rolled out 

the CRHTT team covering just the City & North East AMHT, which enabled the team to revert 

to traditional working hours and model. 

 

However, both the South and N&E AMHTs continue to work 7/7. It is hoped that the CRHTT 

will be rolled out countywide over the next couple of years, but this is reliant on both 

funding and the ability to recruit. 

 

Staff recruitment and retention has been challenging across mental health services both 

nationally and locally, with the additional impact of cost of living in Oxon being the second 

highest in the country without the High Cost Area Supplement (HCAS) offered to NHS staff 

in London.  

 

The impact has predominantly been seen in the recruitment and retention of Band 6 

Registered Mental Nurses (RMN) and Occupational Therapists (OT) which make up most of 

the traditional community mental health work force. 

 

To reduce the impact of Band 6 recruitment issues and develop and retain staff , we have 

reviewed our staffing models and have worked towards a ‘grow your own staffing’ plan.  

 

This means teams have recruited unqualified staff either as Support workers, Peer Support 

Workers (PSW) or Nurse Associate Trainees (NAT) who in turn would be supported, if 

desired, onto appropriate apprenticeship or degree routes to gain a professional 

qualification.  

 

We have started to see the benefits of this plan with some of our original Nurse Associate 

Trainees having completed both the Nurse Associate qualification and now their full RMN 

qualification, seeing them now being employed as Band 5 nurses in our Community Teams.  

 

Similar apprenticeship routes are being rolled out for Occupational Therapy. In order to 

support these roles, teams have converted vacant Band 6 posts into Clinical Band 7 roles 

who have extended, complex caseloads but have a team of newly qualified clinicians, PSWs, 

NATs and support staff working with them who are able to carry out the interventions for 

these patients. 

 

Page 100



 

3 
 

 

 

One of the main issues AMHTs have experienced over the past few years due to the model, 

recruitment issues and increased in demand, is that clinicians often have to focus their time 

on patients in crisis or needing enhanced interventions or new patients, meaning those with 

more complex mental health issues do not receive the recovery-focussed interventions 

required to enable them to move forward and live more independent lives.  

The increased demand has also led to AMHTs needing to increase the threshold for patients 

accessing services and to stay within the service to receive evidenced-based interventions.  

 

People who used our services have raised concern that they often have to reach the 

point of crisis before they are able to access AMHTs and report a significant gap 

between AMHT and Primary Care. 

 

Data 

 

The graphs below show the historical demand of the Oxfordshire Mental Health services split 

by referrals, caseload and appointments and future potential demand. They are also showing 

the potential lower and upper confidence levels based on the unknown future parameters. 

  

The data includes the following teams/services:  

 Oxfordshire Adult Mental Health Teams,  

 EIS Service, 

 Crisis and Home Treatment Service,  

 Perinatal Service 

Based on future projections of AMHT FY22/23, there would be the following increases: 

 Increase in appointments by 1589 (assessment and follow ups) – 25 % 

 Increase in referrals by 148 – 13 % 

 Increase in caseload by 143 – 4 % 

 

Referrals  

 

1041

699

925

0

500

1000

1500

A
p

r-
1
9

Ju
n

-1
9

A
u

g
-1

9

O
c
t-

1
9

D
e

c-
1
9

F
e
b

-2
0

A
p

r-
2
0

Ju
n

-2
0

A
u

g
-2

0

O
c
t-

2
0

D
e

c-
2
0

F
e
b

-2
1

A
p

r-
2
1

Ju
n

-2
1

A
u

g
-2

1

O
c
t-

2
1

D
e

c-
2
1

F
e
b

-2
2

A
p

r-
2
2

Ju
n

-2
2

A
u

g
-2

2

O
c
t-

2
2

D
e

c-
2
2

F
e
b

-2
3

N
o

. o
f 

R
e
fe

rr
a
ls

Figure 1.1 Oxfordshire Mental Health Referral Forecast

Forecasted Referrals Lower Confidence Interval

Upper Confidence Interval Actual Referrals

Page 101



 

4 
 

 

Appointments 

 

 
 

Caseload 

 

 
 

4255

5790

7160

0

2500

5000

7500

10000

A
p

r-
1
9

Ju
n

-1
9

A
u

g
-1

9

O
c
t-

1
9

D
e

c-
1
9

F
e
b

-2
0

A
p

r-
2
0

Ju
n

-2
0

A
u

g
-2

0

O
c
t-

2
0

D
e

c-
2
0

F
e
b

-2
1

A
p

r-
2
1

Ju
n

-2
1

A
u

g
-2

1

O
c
t-

2
1

D
e

c-
2
1

F
e
b

-2
2

A
p

r-
2
2

Ju
n

-2
2

A
u

g
-2

2

O
c
t-

2
2

D
e

c-
2
2

F
e
b

-2
3

M
a
r-

2
3

N
o

. o
f 

R
e
fe

rr
a
ls

Figure 2.1 Oxfordshire Mental Health Appointment Forecast

Historical Appointments Delivered

Forecasted Appointments

Lower Confidence Interval

3722 3731 3801

0

2000

4000

6000

A
p

r-
1
9

Ju
n

-1
9

A
u

g
-1

9

O
c
t-

1
9

D
e

c-
1
9

F
e
b

-2
0

A
p

r-
2
0

Ju
n

-2
0

A
u

g
-2

0

O
c
t-

2
0

D
e

c-
2
0

F
e
b

-2
1

A
p

r-
2
1

Ju
n

-2
1

A
u

g
-2

1

O
c
t-

2
1

D
e

c-
2
1

F
e
b

-2
2

A
p

r-
2
2

Ju
n

-2
2

A
u

g
-2

2

O
c
t-

2
2

D
e

c-
2
2

F
e
b

-2
3

M
a
r-

2
3

N
o

. o
f 

R
e
fe

rr
a
ls

Figure 3.1 Oxfordshire Mental Health Caseload Forecast

Historical Caseloads Forecasted Caseloads

Lower Confidence Interval Upper Confidence Interval

Page 102



 

5 
 

 

2. National context 
 

A new place-based community mental health model  

 

Community mental health services have long played a crucial yet under-recognised role in the 

delivery of mental health care, providing vital support to people with mental health problems 

closer to their homes and communities since the establishment of generic community mental 

health teams (CMHTs) for adults 30 years ago.  

 

However, the model of care is now in need of fundamental transformation and 

modernisation.  

 

The Community Mental Health Framework (CMHF) provides an opportunity to address 

this gap and achieve radical change in the design of community mental health care.  

 

This will be achieved by moving away from traditionally siloed, hard-to-reach services and 

moving towards joined up care and whole population approaches. It will establish a revitalised 

purpose and identity for community mental health services going forward.  

 

In addition, it supports the development of Primary Care Networks, Integrated Care Systems 

(ICSs) and personalised care, including how these developments will help to improve care  for 

people with severe mental illnesses.  

 

The Framework sets out how the vision for a new place-based community mental health model 

can be realised, and how community mental health services will be modernised to shift to 

whole person, whole population health approaches. 

 

In particular, the aim is to drive a renewed focus on people living in their communities with a 

range of long-term severe mental illnesses, and a new focus on people whose needs are 

deemed too severe for Improving Access to Psychological Therapies (IAPT) services but not 

severe enough to meet secondary care “thresholds” .  

 

This includes for example, eating disorders and complex mental health difficulties associated 

with a diagnosis of “personality disorder”.  

 

The new approach will ensure that the provision of NICE-recommended psychological 

therapies is seen as critical in ensuring that adults and older adults with severe mental illnesses 

can access evidence-based care in a timely manner within this new community-based mental 

health offer, to give them the best chance to get better and to stay well – as service users have 

so often feedback they would like. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 103



 

6 
 

 

Oxfordshire Community Mental Health Framework (CMHF) 
 

Background: 

The Community Mental Health Framework (CMHF) and associated transformation funding 

gives a significant opportunity to improve the offer to people with Severe Mental Illness 

(SMI) across Oxfordshire. 

  

For many years patients, carers, clinicians (across primary and secondary care) have reported 

a significant gap in services for people with a SMI, barriers to accessing services, long waits 

for specialist interventions, lack of capacity and training for secondary care professionals to 

provide evidenced based interventions, clinicians ‘firefighting’ due to a lack of appropriate 

Crisis provision, and a void of individualised interventions for people when discharged from 

Secondary mental health services.  

  

We have repeatedly seen this through complaints, patient and carer feedback, frontline 

clinicians, GPs.  

 

Patients and their carers report they often have to get into crisis before they are accepted 

back into Mental Health (MH) services, and the lack of early intervention in relapse impacts 

on flow across MH services.  

  

There are repeated complaints about patients being ‘bounced’ between services and long 

waits with no support during these waits if they reach the appropriate service. This leads to a 

lack of trust in mental health services and risks for patients increasing during this time. 

 

Development of the model 

The model in Oxfordshire was co-produced in partnership with representatives across the 

system. Workshops, focus groups, and engagement events were held with all stakeholders 

including partner organisations (across Primary/Secondary/Third/Voluntary/Acute/Local 

Government sectors and CCG), staff, patients, and carers to develop the hub model in 

Oxfordshire.  

 

We liaised with early implementer sites, to learn from their experiences and used their 

examples to inform discussions.  

 

The purpose of the CMHF Programme is to deliver radical change in the design of 

community mental health care for adults and older adults. This will be achieved by moving 

towards joined up care, designed using a whole population approach, whilst establishing a 

revitalised purpose and identity for community mental health services.   

  

People will be supported to live well, to maximise their individual skills, and to be aware and 

make use of the resources and assets available to them as they wish.  

 

This new approach of locally based mental health support, care and treatment for adults and 

older adults is situated and provided in the community.  

 

Page 104



 

7 
 

 

Close working between professionals in local communities is intended to eliminate 

exclusions based on a person’s diagnosis or level of complexity and avoid unnecessary 

repeat assessments and referrals. 

 

Care will be centred around an individual’s needs and will be stepped up or down based on 

need and complexity and on the intensity of input and expertise required at a specific time. 

Support is applicable and available to all people irrespective of their diagnosis.   

  

Instead of sitting in separate teams, dedicated services will ‘plug into’ a new core model 

through agreed in-reach or liaison arrangements and shared care, providing rapid, evidence-

based clinical input when appropriate and specialist clinical expertise when needed, helping 

to maximise continuity of care.  

 

Teams will fully integrate their working with other local services. This new model of care will 

span both core community provision and dedicated services where the evidence supports, 

and they will be built around primary care networks (PCN’s).   

  

The programme aims to:   

  

 Promote mental and physical health and prevent ill health.   

 Treat mental health problems effectively through evidence-based psychological 

and/ or pharmacological approaches that maximise benefits and minimise the 

likelihood of inflicting harm, and use a collaborative approach that:  

  builds on strengths and supports choice;  

  is underpinned by a single care plan accessible to all involved in the 

person’s care.  

 Improve quality of life, including supporting individuals to contribute to and 

participate in their communities as fully as possible, connect with meaningful 

activities, and create or fulfil hopes and aspirations in line with their individual 

wishes.  

 Maximise continuity of care and ensure no “cliff-edge” of lost care and support by 

moving away from a system based on referrals, arbitrary thresholds, unsupported 

transitions and discharge to little or no support. Instead, move towards a flexible 

system that proactively responds to ongoing care needs.  

 Work collaboratively across statutory and non-statutory commissioners and 

providers within a local health and care system to address health inequalities and 

social determinants of mental ill health.   

 Build a model of care based on inclusivity, particularly for people with coexisting 

needs, with the highest levels of complexity and who experience marginalisation.  

 Establish new integrated diagnostic pathways to be delivered through integrated 

teams based in primary care and locally accessible Hubs in the community. This will 

allow patients to access and flow through services with no wrong door in or out.   

  

 

 

 

 

Page 105



 

8 
 

 

Our vision 
Our vision is to provide truly integrated, multi-agency care to adults with severe mental 

illness in a way which is proactive, personalised and considers the holistic needs of patients. 

A service which works collaboratively with primary care and draws upon the assets of the 

community to facilitate effective, accessible care and communication across the whole 

system.  

  

The CMHF goals are as follows:  

 

1. Integrated Primary & Secondary Care  

A joined-up approach, working together with GPs to improve patient’s experiences          

and outcomes.  

2. Treating the patient’s holistic needs  

Considering a patient’s overall and individual need; physical & mental health, 

wellbeing & social support care.  

3. Improved Access to Care  

Faster, simplified access for all who need it  

4. Targeted Pathways addressing specific need  

Eating Disorders, Personality Disorders, Complex Psychosis & Rehabilitation.  

 

Integrated Community Healthcare Model for Oxfordshire 

 

Oxfordshire’s CMHF Programme will establish an Integrated Community Mental Health 

pathway that plugs the increasing gap in mental health support for patients with serious 

mental illness (SMI), between the traditional Primary and Secondary Care services through 

the introduction of Primary Care Mental Health Teams (PCMHTs).  

 

The teams will exist across the 3 localities of Oxfordshire (South, City & North East, North & 

West). This will enhance the current offer to mean each locality has Primary Care Mental 

Health Teams, Enhanced Mental Health teams (AMHT & CMHT) and Dedicated Mental 

Health teams (EIS, Perinatal, CNS, etc).   

 

a) Primary Care Mental Health Teams (PCMHT) 

 

There will be 8 PCMHTs in total across Oxon by the end of March 2024 each covering 

between 2-3 PCNs - Banbury, Witney, Bicester, North Oxford City & KIWY, Central Oxford, 

East Oxford, Didcot & Wantage, Abingdon and Wallingford.  It is anticipated that these will 

be co-located within the Mental Health and Wellbeing hubs or local community spaces.   

 

The teams will prevent escalation and support patient recovery facilitating the move on into 

living well with their condition in their community and will provide:  

 

 A local point of access for all mental health referrals (although GPs will continue to be 

able to refer directly to TSP). (Enhanced MH Teams - AMHT/ CMHT to input into 

triage).  

Page 106



 

9 
 

 Trusted assessment – following triage, leading to self-help advice, signposting to 

Third/Voluntary sector, short term intervention from the PCMHT, direct referral into 

Enhanced or Dedicated MH teams without the need for further triage or repeated 

assessment. There will be an opportunity for joint assessment with Enhanced or 

Dedicated MH teams if required.  

 

 Short term intervention – both early intervention for people presenting for the first 

time and those with an existing diagnosis with signs of relapse or advice/ reviews – 

including support with physical health.  

 

 

b) Keystone Mental Health and Wellbeing Hubs 

 

Alongside the PCMHT, the offer would be a single point of access to other services which are 

important to maintain mental health – housing, benefits, drug & alcohol services, CAB, health 

and wellbeing services – so these services could run clinics from the Keystone Hubs making 

these a one-stop shop.  

 

Keystone Hubs will offer a welcoming and non-stigmatised outward facing façade with a 

social enterprise offer alongside MH and wellbeing support services.  The hub model offers 

opportunities to achieve truly integrated partnership working at a community level which will 

be able to offer support to self-referrals and group interventions.  

  

It is anticipated that local community groups would be interested in using the space, and 

activities could be run from the hubs.  In the public space there will be information relating 

to mental health and wellbeing – this should be available in different formats as well as 

staff/volunteers available to speak to any enquiries.   

  

It is anticipated that the front of each Keystone Hub will house a local social enterprise who 

we intended to employ people with lived experience of SMI into a variety of roles and 

encourage volunteers to work alongside our PCMHT in offering advice and guidance to 

those coming into the building.  

 

We will invite other agencies to have ‘surgeries’ within Keystone Hubs to include CAB, 

housing advice, benefits advice, Turning Point, Age UK etc. The space could be used by those 

in need of MH support by day and local community groups by night; and our partner 

organisations have expressed an interest in utilising such space to expand our Safe Havens.   

  

  

c) Specialist Mental Health practitioners for Primary Care 

 

Although not officially part of the original CMHF proposal, these roles were an addition to 

the Primary Care Additional Roles Reimbursement Scheme (ARRS) offer from April 2021 with 

the expectation that each PCN would be funded for 50% of a MH practitioner (B5-B8a) each 

year over three years to April 2024 (so a total of 3 per PCN after 3 years). The expectation 

was for MH providers to fund the other 50% and be the employer for these workers.  

 

 

Page 107



 

10 
 

 

Each PCN has developed the role to meet their needs, for most the SMHPs provide on the 

day assessment for patients presenting to the practices with mental health issues, some are 

‘referring’ all MH referrals to these workers for triage to determine if the patient can be 

managed with MH interventions in Primary Care or requires onward referral to secondary 

care.  

 

All the SMHPs have access to the PCN SMI register and will be offering reviews to those not 

‘open’ to MH services; for some this will include offering a physical health review and care 

plan. They all are becoming the first point of contact to patients with SMI or Personality 

Disorders who traditionally have regularly booked appointments with GPs.  

 

 

d) Pathways 

 

NHSE have advised that CMHF’s delivery of improved local, accessible, integrated community 

mental health support must evidence improvements to 3 specific pathways within the 3-year 

programme:  

 Personality Disorders (PD) 

 Adult Eating Disorders (AED) 

 Rehab/Complex psychosis 

 

In addition to this, the following pathways have been identified for review: 

 

 Depression 

 Anxiety 

 Bipolar disorder 

 Early Intervention Psychosis 

 Psychosis 

 Post Traumatic Stress Disorder (PTSD)  

 Dual diagnosis Autism 

 Dual diagnosis MH Addiction 

 

Each pathway review is being led by a clinician has membership including Experts by 

Experience (EbEs), Psychiatrists, PT, staff from Third/Voluntary sector, and some included GPs. 

Pathway review identifies the expected interventions to be offered at each level of the 

pathway and the training and competency needs at each stage and for each staff member. 

They also highlight any gaps in service provision and how these could be addressed.  

 

The dual diagnosis ASD pathway will lay across all the pathways and will include 

development of reasonable adjustments which care be integrated within all MH provision 

and training  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 108



 

11 
 

 

3. Next steps 
 

The Community Mental Health Framework continues to progress at pace. Key achievements 

to date include the following: 

 

 13 Specialist Mental Health Practitioner (ARRS) roles in post with another starting 

soon. Each PCN will have one ARRs role in post and ongoing recruitment is in place 

to support this.  

 

 3 Keystone Mental Health and Wellbeing hubs launching imminently November 2022 

(Blackbird Leys and East Oxford), January 2023 (Banbury) and March 2023 

(Abingdon).  

 

Blackbird Leys & East Oxford Keystone Mental Health and Wellbeing Hub is the 

first mental health and wellbeing hub being launched and has been set up in 

partnership with The Frank Bruno Foundation.  

 

The Frank Bruno Foundation was set up in 2017 to provide a safe environment for 

young people with mental health issues and subsequently older people in work who 

need help to manage their mental health whilst continuing to work. The launch is 

anticipated to take place on November 25, 2022.  

 

 Anxiety and Depression pathway reviews have been completed with implementation 

expected to commence shortly. Further development is ongoing across all pathways 

which will continue to complete throughout this year and into next.  

 

 The PCMHTs continue to form through ongoing recruitment and the teams are 

growing steadily.  

 

There is a robust communication plan in place which supports the delivery of key 

communications activities now that the Programme moves into launch phase of the hubs. 

This includes the launch events themselves, roadshows, committee meetings, webinars and 

facilitated events. If you would like to know more information about the Programme or to 

attend future events then please contact CMHF@oxfordhealth.nhs.uk   

Page 109

mailto:CMHF@oxfordhealth.nhs.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

Work Programme 2022/23 

                                       Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee  
 

Cllr J Hanna OBE Chair | Eddie Scott eddie.scott@oxfordshire.gov.uk 
 
 
 

COMMITTEE BUSINESS  

 
Topic Relevant strategic 

priorities 

Purpose Type Report Leads 

9 FEBRUARY 2023 

Integrated Care 
Programme For 

Oxfordshire   

Prioritise the Health 
and Wellbeing of 

Residents 
 

Assurance of smooth 
transfers of care, 

capacity and demand 
management with view 
to improving their ability 

to reduce demand on 
emergency/secondary 

services and drive 
better outcomes for 
residents and carers 

 Cllr T Bearder 
Karen Fuller  

 
Sam Foster 
Pippa Corner  

Lily O Connor 
Sara Randall 

South Central 

Ambulance Service 
Improvement 

Programme  

Prioritise the Health 

and Wellbeing of 
Residents 

 

To monitor the progress 

of improvements to 
South Central 

Ambulance Service 
following their CQC 
report in August 2022.  

 Will Hancock,  

David Duran.  

P
age 111

A
genda Item

 8



 

End of Life Care – 
Children and Adults 
 

Support carers and the 
social care system  

Understanding the new 
service (sig. investment 
in Spring 2021) how it 

has integrated with 
existing pathways and 

provides a better 
service for those on the 
EOL pathway and their 

families. 

 Cllr T Bearder  
Karen Fuller 
 

Rebecca Cullen to 
advise most appropriate 

Dentistry Prioritise the Health 
and Wellbeing of 

Residents 
 

Tackle Inequalities in 
Oxfordshire  
 

Assessment of current 
provision and 

opportunities for 
improvement  

 
 
 

 
 

 TBC  

MSK Service Update  Prioritise the Health 

and Wellbeing of 
Residents 
 

To receive an update on 

the performance of the 
newly commissioned 
service.  

 Richard Pell, Avril 

Fahey (Connected 
Health)  
And a Commissioner 

Representative TBC. 
20 April 2023 

Public Health  Tackle Inequalities in 
Oxfordshire  

 
Prioritise the Health 
and Wellbeing of 

Residents 
 

Assessment of 
prevention and early 

intervention services 
with a view to improving 
their ability to reduce 

demand on primary 
care / secondary 

services and drive 

 Cllr Lygo 
Ansaf Azhar  

P
age 112



 

Create Opportunities 
for children and young 
people to reach their 

full potential 

better outcomes for 
residents.   

 
 

 
SUB GROUP / WORKING GROUP  

 
SUB GROUPS / WORKING GROUPS 

Name Relevant strategic 
priorities 

Description Outcomes Members 

Ensuring 

Population 
Health Needs 
within the 

Planning / 
Development 

Control 
Process 

Tackle Inequalities in 

Oxfordshire  
 
Prioritise the Health and 

Wellbeing of Residents 
 

Create Opportunities for 
children and young 
people to reach their full 

potential 
 
 

To understand the current 

system of capturing, 
incorporating and 
delivering the health 

needs of a population as 
part of the development of 

new settlements across 
Oxfordshire.   

To be assured that all 

relevant organisations 
involvement are meeting 
or exceeding their legal 

or practical 
responsibilities  

 
To affect changes to 
current processes that 

will ensure health needs 
are delivered  
 

TBC 

COVID-19 
Sub Group  

Tackle Inequalities in 
Oxfordshire  
 

Prioritise the Health and 
Wellbeing of Residents 

 
 
 

To review publicly 
available papers on the 
elective recovery backlog 

and report to HOSC.  

To be assured that the 
targets in plans for the 
recovery of elective care 

are being met.   
 

 
 

Cllr Jane Hanna 
Jean Bradlow 
Barbara Shaw 

Cllr Damian Heywood 

P
age 113



 

Integrated 
Improvement 
Programme 

Sub-Group  

Tackle Inequalities in 
Oxfordshire  
 

Prioritise the Health and 
Wellbeing of Residents 

 

To consolidate existing 
unanswered questions; 
 

To monitor the progress of 
the implementation of the 

Integrated Improvement 
programme.  
 

To analyse the 
evaluations of the 

Outpatient Pilot. 
 
To seek clarification and 

assurances on the 
previous commitments 

made in respect of the 
Wantage Community 
Hospital.  

To drive better 
outcomes.  
 

Cllr Jane Hanna  
Cllr Paul Barrow 
Barbara Shaw  

Jean Bradlow  
Cllr Imade Edosomwan 

 
 
 

 
 
BRIEFINGS FOR MEMBER INFORMATION 

  
BRIEFINGS  

Name Relevant strategic 
priorities 

Description Outcomes Members 

Health And 

Care Act 2022  

 Ensuring Member and 

officer understanding of 
the reforms to the NHS 

and SC as part of the 

To understand the new 

health landscape  
 

All  

P
age 114



 

Health and Care Act and 
its impact on Oxfordshire  
 

To understand where 
accountability lies within 
an integrated system 

 

The Emerging 
Policy Climate 

for Children’s 
Services / 

Education:  
 

 Understanding the impact 
of the National SEND 

review/green paper, 
Opportunity for All White 

Paper, Josh McAlistair 
Review and the Health 
and Care Act and its 

translation for Oxfordshire.   
To include a review of 

reforms introduced by 
OCC on children/adults 
interface in 2021.   

 

To understand the 
emerging policy 

landscape  

All 

The Emerging 
Policy Climate 

for Adults 
Services 

 Understanding the impact 
of the CQC assurance 

responsibilities, People At 
The Heart of Care white 
paper, the Health and 

Care Act and its 
translation for Oxfordshire.   

To understand the 
emerging policy 

landscape  

All  

 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

P
age 115



 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

ITEMS DEFERRED FROM WORK PROGRAMME 2022/23  

Name Relevant strategic 

priorities 

Description Outcomes Members Comments from 

Health Scrutiny 
Officer 

Healthy 

Place 
Shaping  

Tackle Inequalities in 

Oxfordshire  
 
Prioritise the Health 

and Wellbeing of 
Residents  

 
Create Opportunities 
for children and 

young people to 
reach their full 

potential 

Assessment of the 

development of HPS 
and opportunities for 
maximum impact 

across Oxfordshire.   

 Cllr M Lygo 

Ansaf Azhar  
 
Rosie Rowe 

Agreed to swap 

HPS out of the 
programme and 
place Smoke Free 

in the programme 
as agreed at 

Committee on 9 
June.  This item 
will stay on the 

deferred 
programme in the 

event that 
Members wish to 

P
age 116



 

re insert it at a 
later date.   

Funding For 

Children’s 
Mental 
Health from 

the BOB ICB  

Create Opportunities 

for children and 
young people to 
reach their full 

potential 

To understand current 

and future funding 
position based on the 
need to manage 

current CAMHS 
demand and any 

future demand 

Funding For 

Children’s Mental 
Health from the 
BOB ICB  

Create Opportunities 

for children and young 
people to reach their 
full potential 

Report won’t be 

ready for July 
2022 meeting. 
Suggest members 

use this subject as 
a key line of 

enquiry as part of 
ICB strategy 
conversations (first 

one 14 July) and 
any financial 

planning rounds.   

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

DRAFT WORK PROGRAMME 2023/24 

Name Relevant strategic 

priorities 

Description Outcomes Members 

Evaluation of 
the emotional 

wellbeing for 
children and 

young people 
service/s 
 

 To review the 
outcomes/efficacy of the 

service.  
 

See Committee 10 March 
and 9 June for 
background.   

  

P
age 117



 

 
Schedule in for September 
2023 meeting  

 
 
 

P
age 118



Consolidated Action and Recommendation Tracker – Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee 24 November 2022.  

1 

Action Item Action Lead Progress update 

44/21 1  45/21 Minutes of 23 September Health partners to be invited to the next OCC scrutiny 
training 

Helen 
Mitchell OCC 

To be actioned in the new municipal year 
for 23/24.   

In progress 

Update – OCC scrutiny are working up a 
training proposal with CfGS.   

 28 November Meeting  

46/21 2 47/21 COVID Jo Cogswell to report to the next meeting on the 
allocation of Winter Access Funds. 

Jo Cogswell, 
Oxfordshire 
CCG 

A comprehensive item will be considered at 
the Committee’s meeting on 10 May 2022.   

Update – Committee on 10 May agreed this 
was not completed via the Primary Care 
paper shared with Committee. Would be 
completed subject to further information 
offered via a workshop with ICB colleagues.  

Completed - The Primary Care Workshop 
took place on 17 October 2022 and findings 
and topics discussed are to be covered at 
the 24 November 2022 HOSC Meeting. 

 

It is understood the Winter Access funds 
aren’t available for the forthcoming winter. 

P
age 119

A
genda Item

 9



Consolidated Action and Recommendation Tracker – Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee 24 November 2022.  

2 

Action Item Action Lead Progress update 

48/21 3 49/21 COVID Recommended that HOSC planning (at their virtual 
meeting) will develop a template for reporting to 
HOSC, which will include a section on what 
contribution is being made to COVID recovery.  

Eddie Scott  
OCC 

Update – template is being drawn together 
as a result of examples being shared from 
the SE Scrutiny Officers network. This has 
subsequently been discussed at the SE 
Health Scrutiny Officers’ network.  

Completed - A COVID-19 recovery 
question is to be included in the 
commission of future reports where 
appropriate. Where necessary a covering 
report by the Health Scrutiny Officer will 
provide a recommendation, background 
and context to reports provided by NHS 
Partners.  

50/21 4 51/21 Cllr Barrow’s infection control 

report 

OCC carries out a regular review of current infection 
control procedures in care homes and the support 
provided. 

Karen Fuller, 
OCC 

This is built into our routine procedures in 
relation to infection control and monitoring 
outbreaks. OCC works in partnership with 
Oxford Health care home support service, 
CQC and UKHSA. 

Completed  

Feedback from Cllrs Barrow, Poskitt and 
Barbara Shaw following a visit on 25 July, 
was given to the 22 September 2022 
HOSC Meeting  

 

 10 March 

Meeting 

 

P
age 120



Consolidated Action and Recommendation Tracker – Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee 24 November 2022.  

3 

Action Item Action Lead Progress update 

52/21 5 53/21 Access and Waiting Times 
Information is supplied on the new elective care 
access offer across the BOB footprint (the provider 
collaborative) 

Sara Randall, 
OUH 

BOB ICS Elective Recovery plan & provider 
collaborative would need to be presented by 
BOB ICS colleagues -  
 
In progress 
 
Update – Sarah Adair (BOB ICB) to advise 
a suitable person to brief the Covid-19 
Elective Recovery Backlog group in respect 
of this.  

54/21 6 55/21 Access and Waiting Times 
That Members meet separately with James Scott to 
explore workforce challenges across Oxfordshire/the 
NHS 

James Scott, 
BOB ICS   

 Eddie and OCC BOB HOSC Members to 
ask for the item to be placed on the BOB 
HOSC Work Programme.   
 
In progress   
 
Update – To be considered as part of future 
discussions amongst the BOB HOSC 

56/21 7 57/21 Chairs Update  
That Members of the Committee come forward in 
which to develop a glossary of NHS acronyms.  

Eddie Scott/ 
Cllr Nigel 
Champken-
Woods  

Cllr Champken – Woods came forward at 
the last meeting to start an early draft. It 
was identified that Wokingham’s HOSC 
glossary as a good model to follow.  
 
In progress 
This is currently being collated with Cllr 
Champken-Woods and will be appended at 
the back of HOSC agendas once finished.   
 
 

 10 May Meeting     

8 Primary Care That the Committee takes up the offer from Primary 
Care colleagues to have a primary care workshop to 
be delivered at a mutually agreeable date.   

Eddie Scott / 
Julie 
Dandridge/ 
Jo Cogswell   

Completed - The Primary Care Workshop 
took place on 17 October 2022 and findings 
and topics discussed are to be covered at 
the 24 November 2022 HOSC Meeting  

 

P
age 121



Consolidated Action and Recommendation Tracker – Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee 24 November 2022.  

4 

Action Item Action Lead Progress update 

9 Primary Care  That colleagues provide additional trend data in 
respect of GP satisfaction so to compare pre-covid 
satisfaction with the information supplied at the 
meeting.   

Jo Cogswell / 
Julie 
Dandridge 

 Completed and sent to HOSC Members.  

Once the recent patient survey is 

published trend data will be available 
here: 

GP Patient Survey - Analysis Tool (gp-
patient.co.uk) 

10 BOB ICB Engagement  That the Committee respond to the strategy to meet 
the earliest available deadline (18 May) and invite 
Chair to next meeting 

Eddie Scott  

 

In Progress – 

Update – The attendance of the ICB Chair 
for 14 July meeting was not possible owing 
to a prior and unavoidable commitment.  
The ICB wishes to meet with all HOSC 
chairs and meetings dates are soon to be 
canvassed. The Health Scrutiny Officer is to 
discuss the framework with the ICB Head of 
Communications & Engagement   

 

 14 July Meeting     

11 Integrated Improvement 
Programme  

That clarification is sought on the position of Thame 
within the Oxfordshire Integrated Improvement as a 
result of overlapping geographies of service provision 
with Buckinghamshire.   

Eddie Scott / 
Helen Shute 

In progress – The Health Scrutiny Officer is 
to chase for further clarification in respect of 
this.  

12 Integrated Improvement 
Programme 

That commitment is provided to the Committee in 
respect of the previous undertakings associated with 
the former Community Services Strategy in respect of 
service delivery at Wantage General Hospital.  

Eddie Scott / 
Cllr J Hanna  

A method for further engagement with the 
OX12 Community is to be discussed 
between the Health Scrutiny Officer, the 
Chair and the Integrated Improvement 
Programme Sub-Group.  

13 Integrated Improvement 
Programme 

Establish a sub group on the Integrated Improvement 
Programme to provide NHS / OCC colleagues the 
opportunity to engage with HOSC outside of formal 
Committee meetings (as well as in addition to).  It 
should cover all aspects of comms and engagement 
and any issues relating to services at Wantage.   

Cllrs Hanna, 
Edosomwan, 
Barrow and 
Barbara 
Shaw  

In progress –  

UPDATE- The Integrated Improvement 
Programme met as a Member-only forum 
on 20 September 2022 and agreed to meet 
with a ICB representative in respect of the 
ICB’s involvement in the IIP. The Group 

P
age 122

https://www.gp-patient.co.uk/analysistool?trend=1
https://www.gp-patient.co.uk/analysistool?trend=1


Consolidated Action and Recommendation Tracker – Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee 24 November 2022.  

5 

Action Item Action Lead Progress update 

 

Eddie Scott 

also agreed that a group would engage with 
representatives at OH in respect of the 
maternity closures and maternity closures 
across Oxfordshire.  

Terms of Reference for the Group will be 
drawn up for engagement in respect of the 
consultation and delivery plan relating to the 
IIP.  

14 Integrated Care Board Update  Place the ICB Strategy on a future agenda for HOSC.   Eddie Scott In Progress-  

UPDATE- consideration be given to the 
Strategy being considered at a BOB HOSC 
Level.  

 22 September Meeting     

15 Minutes from the Previous 
Meeting  

Relating to Cllr David Turner’s question, clarification is 
sought since March 2020, how many people in 
Oxfordshire had been referred to Palliative Care, how 
many in total had received treatment; and how many 
of those had been treated in bed-based settings; and 
how many had been treated at home. 

Eddie Scott/  

Lily O’Connor 

Completed. 

An answer containing metrics was received 
and sent to all Committee Members for 
reference.   

 

16 Action and Recommendation 
Tracker  

NHS England Health and Justice to fill out the 
Committee’s substantial change toolkit in relation to the 
SARC in Bicester; this is to then be reviewed by 
Members via email, with a view to meeting the 
Commissioner in person.   

Lisa Briggs  In Progress -  

The Substantial Change Toolkit form has 
been received and is being considered by 
Cllrs Champken-Woods, Hanna and 
Heywood.   

17 Responses to Committee 
Recommendations 

A short briefing note is compiled by the Health Scrutiny 
officer in consultation with the Chair outlining the 
modules of the National Covid-19 inquiry to the Cabinet 
Member for Adult Social Care and the role of OCC.  

Eddie Scott /  

Cllr Jane 
Hanna/  

Ansaf Azhar 

In Progress –  

Liaisons are ongoing in respect of this piece 
of work.  

18 Chair’s Update and Committee 
Sub-Group Updates  

Relating to the Integrated Improvement Programme; a 
meeting is set-up to discuss the future plans for 

Eddie Scott/  

Sam Foster  

In Progress- 

P
age 123



Consolidated Action and Recommendation Tracker – Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee 24 November 2022.  

6 

Action Item Action Lead Progress update 

maternity in Oxfordshire including the closure of 
maternity units in Chipping Norton and Wantage.  

A subset of HOSC Members are due to 
attend OUH’s Maternity and Neonatal 
Services Stakeholder event on 18 
November 2022.   

19 Chair’s Update and Committee 
Sub-Group Updates 

Further information is sought by the IIP Sub-Group as 
to how the Integrated Improvement Programme fitted 
in with the ICB’s overall vision.  

Eddie Scott/  

Dan Levison  

In Progress- 

The Health Scrutiny Officer is to ask to write 
to the ICB Place Based Director to ask for 
his attendance at the next meeting of the 
sub group; to better understand the ICB 
Role’s in the Integrated Improvement 
Programme, and clarity as to the leadership 
and timelines as to the Programme.   

20 Chair’s Update and Committee 
Sub-Group Updates 

Following an initial meeting with the new provider, a 
HOSC member is appointed to Connect Health’s 
service-user board    

Richard Pell   In Progress- 

The provider is to get in contact when the 
board is set up.   

 

 

 

 

P
age 124



 
 

Healthwatch Oxfordshire Report to HOSC 
November 2022 
 

An overview of activity and outcomes April - September 2022 

 

 

 

 

 

CONTENTS 

Healthwatch Oxfordshire Reports to external bodies ................................. 2 

Healthwatch Oxfordshire research reports ....................................................... 2 

Activity and outcomes April to end of September 2022 ........................... 2 

Round table meetings ..................................................................................................... 3 

Healthwatch Oxfordshire Open Forum ................................................................ 4 

  

Page 125

Agenda Item 10



November 2022 Healthwatch Oxfordshire Report to HOSC Page 2 of 4 

Overview of Healthwatch Oxfordshire activity April to 
November 2022 

Healthwatch Oxfordshire Reports to external bodies 
During April to November 2022 we published the following reports to: 

• Oxfordshire Health and Wellbeing Board in June and September 2022 
• Oxfordshire Health Improvement Partnership Board May, September and 

November 2022. 
• Oxfordshire Joint Health Overview Scrutiny Committee in May, June and 

September 2022. 
All the above reports are available online at: 
https://healthwatchoxfordshire.co.uk/our-reports/reports-to-other-bodies/ 

Healthwatch Oxfordshire research reports 
https://healthwatchoxfordshire.co.uk/our-work/research-reports/  

We published 2 research reports: 
• Visiting Care Homes since COVID 19 
• Getting your prescriptions from pharmacy (plus a round table discussion)  

Activity and outcomes April to end of September 2022 
Between April and the end of September we heard from/engaged with 4,162 people. 

Points of note include: 

• 156 people received signposting support 
• 173 Feedback Centre reviews 
• 2,676 people have actively engaged with our social media channels 
• 880 people have been heard from during our outreach, research and 

engagement with voluntary and community organisations 
• Completed 4 Enter & View visits where we heard from 100 people 
• Our support for Patient Participation Groups and Primary Care Networks 

continues – we held 4 webinars attended by 74 people and attended 9 
PPG/PCN meetings over this period 

 

 

Page 126

https://healthwatchoxfordshire.co.uk/our-reports/reports-to-other-bodies/
https://healthwatchoxfordshire.co.uk/our-work/research-reports/


November 2022 Healthwatch Oxfordshire Report to HOSC Page 3 of 4 

Outreach activity: 

‘On the street’ outreach to speak to the public took place in Banbury, Faringdon, 
Oxford Older People’s Day and Oxford University Freshers Fair (Keble College) and 
planned for 18th November in Wallingford and elsewhere in the coming months. 

Healthwatch Oxfordshire hospital stands have been held at Horton, Nuffield 
Orthopaedic, and John Radcliffe hospitals to speak directly with members of the 
public. 

Oxfordshire Men’s Health Partnership is encouraging everyone to have a chat with a 
friend, colleague, family member or stranger every day throughout November to 
help tackle issues of loneliness and isolation. Healthwatch Oxfordshire are linking into 
this and supporting its 30 Chats in 30 Days campaign by having 30 conversations in 
November with working men in Carterton 

Outcomes from our work – To read about other outcomes see our Board papers for 
the 29th November Healthwatch Oxfordshire Trustees meeting on webpage 
https://healthwatchoxfordshire.co.uk/about-us/board-papers-and-minutes/  
 

Key issues we are hearing: 

Continue to hear about NHS dentistry, GP waiting times and access, cost of living, 
CAMHS. 

Round table meetings 
Following our report ‘Getting Your Prescriptions’ we held a round table discussion 
attended by the local commissioners – Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Berkshire 
West Integrated Care Board (BOB ICB) - GPs, Primary Care Networks, Thames Valley 
Pharmacy, and pharmacy providers. Agreed actions included a commitment to work 
closely together as a system, to improve communication with the public, better 
promotion and awareness of services. This also included commitment to explore 
improvements to some of the operational challenges of referral and delivery, whilst 
focusing on understanding gaps in reach or uptake, particularly in communities 
facing health inequalities in the county. Healthwatch Oxfordshire will follow up on 
progress in the future 

Following on from hearing from patients that they cannot find an NHS dentist to 
register with, to access ongoing treatment following an emergency appointment or 

Page 127

https://healthwatchoxfordshire.co.uk/about-us/board-papers-and-minutes/


November 2022 Healthwatch Oxfordshire Report to HOSC Page 4 of 4 

to register their children Healthwatch Oxfordshire invited the commissioner, Local 
Dental Committee and Oxfordshire County Council Public Health and Oxford Health 
NHS Foundation Trust to a round table discussion - ‘What can be done to improve 
patient access to NHS Dentistry?’ Actions agreed were:  

1. Improved communication with public including: 
a. Make publicly available the Dental Help Line 
b. Public information about dental care and support 
c. Public health information campaign about dental health 
d. Greater awareness that a patient is not limited to using the same 

dentist – it is not the same as being registered with a GP! 
2. The NHS Commissioner and Public Health to work closely together 
3. Healthwatch Oxfordshire and Healthwatch Bucks to support 

communications with the public – get important messages out there! 
 
An opportunity for BOB ICB to be innovative 
The opportunity for BOB ICB as the commissioner of dentistry in the area to explore 
how they can devise a service that meets the needs of local populations. 
Healthwatch Oxfordshire is keen to continue this discussion, support BOB ICB to 
communicate with their population, support the Public Health messaging, and keep 
the foot on the pedal on improving access to NHS dentistry in the area. 
 

Healthwatch Oxfordshire Open Forum 
We are holding an online Open Forum on Tuesday 29th November from 4.30pm – 
5.30pm, and all are welcome to attend. Please do come along to:  

• Have your say about local health and care services 
• Hear about our work and tell us your views 
• Meet our board of trustees and put your questions to them. 

For details, including a Zoom joining link, see here. 
 

 

Page 128

https://healthwatchoxfordshire.co.uk/news/come-to-our-open-forum/


 

1 

 

JOINT HEALTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

24 November 2022  
 

CHAIR’S UPDATE 
 

REPORT BY CLLR JANE HANNA, COMMITTEE CHAIR  
 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 
1. The Committee is RECOMMENDED to 

 

1. Note the report; 

UPDATES 

 
Primary Care Workshop 

Following the Committee’s consideration of Primary Care at its March Meeting, the 

Integrated Care Board’s offer of a workshop on the subject was co-produced and 
taken up by the Committee on 17 October 2022. The workshop was led by Julie 

Dandridge and covered areas, including capacity and demand in Primary Care, 
Primary Care Estates as well as the narrative around Primary Care.  
 

Members of the Committee heard valuable insights from Dr Richard Wood, Chair of 
the Berkshire, Buckinghamshire & Oxfordshire Local Medical Committee, GPs Dr Joe 

McManners, The Manor Surgery, Oxford, and Dr Rachel Ward, Woodlands Medical 
Centre, Didcot, Healthwatch and from the Council’s Property and Estates Team.  
 

The positive outcomes of the Workshop and its key themes are drawn out in the 
report included in the 24 November 2022 Committee Meeting’s agenda pack and the 

discussions will be further supplemented at the meeting by a further report by the 
Integrated Care Board. 
 
Integrated Care Board 

I was pleased to meet and introduce myself to the ICB Place Director for Oxfordshire, 

Dan Leveson, to discuss the role of the JHOSC and to arrange ongoing future 
meetings with the HOSC Chair in order to facilitate good Scrutiny. I look forward to 
the Committee establishing a close relationship with Dan moving forward.  

 
I also look forward to taking up the offer of an introductory meeting with Steve 

McManus, the Interim Chief Executive Officer of the ICB and Javed Khan in order to 
form positive working relationships moving forward.  
 

In December and looking into the new year there will be an opportunity for scrutiny of 
the forthcoming ICP Strategy. I will also be monitoring the public engagement plan in 

order to ensure there will be adequate public engagement on the strategy. There has 
also been informal liaison between the Oxfordshire and Buckinghamshire Health 

Page 129

Agenda Item 11



Scrutiny Officers to share good practice and to discuss approaches to the scrutiny of 
the strategy.   

 
 
Wantage Town Council 

Myself and Vice-Chair, Cllr Paul Barrow, attended Wantage Town Council’s Health-
Sub Committee in order to provide an update in respect of the work of Oxfordshire 

JHOSC. We also presented an update to the Sub-Committee in respect of the 
developments as to the services being provided at Wantage Hospital since the 
Committee’s Site Visit on 23 June 2022 facilitated by a written update from Dr Ben 

Riley.  This also included updated information as to staffing levels, and the current 
status as to inpatient beds.   

 
Covid-19 - Elective Recovery Sub-Group  

The Covid-19, Elective Recovery Backlog Sub-Group met on 7 November 2022 in 

order to jointly review the associated metrics in relation to cancer treatment waiting 
times as contained in Oxford University Hospital Trust Board’s agenda papers. 

Moving forward, the Group agreed that it would like to pay close focus to Breast 
Cancer Treatment referral and treatment times and performance of Urology services.  
 
SCAS Improvement Plan Update (Appended). 

The Committee received a positive monthly update as to the SCAS Improvement 

Programme following the consideration of the programme at its September 
Committee Meeting. The update details the actions already taken and the planned 
next steps in relation to each of the identified ‘Must Do’, recommendations identified 

in the recent Care Quality Commission Report.  
 
Letter on the Scrutiny of MSK Services and Response (Appended)  

 

I have attached a letter which was received from Bill MacKeith, Secretary, Oxon 

Keep Our NHS Public, in respect of the Committee’s Scrutiny of Musculoskeletal 
Physiotherapy services within Oxfordshire. Following subsequent communication 

from Mr MacKeith stating that the letter should be treated as addressed to the Chair 
of the Committee, I have responded as per the attached letter. Mr MacKeith has 
recently sent a further reply, which I am currently in the process of compiling a 

response to.  
 

 
Maternity within Oxfordshire Stakeholder Event  

 

Myself, Cllr Paul Barrow, Cllr Damian Heywood, Barbara Shaw and June Bradlow 
are due to attend an Oxford University Hospital’s Stakeholder Event on Maternity 

Services within Oxfordshire on 18 November 2022 on behalf of the Committee. We 
are looking forward to finding out more and understanding what is likely to inform 
OUH’s clinical strategy for Maternity and Neonatal services moving forwards. 

 
 

Page 130



Oxfordshire Keep Our NHS Public  https://keepournhspublicoxfordshire.org.uk 
c/o 60 Great Clarendon St    Oxford    OX2 6SX    01865 558145 
 
16 September 2022 
 
 
Dear Oxfordshire Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee member, 
 
I am writing in regard to the MSK matter itemised under the chair’s report for your meeting 
on Tuesday 22nd September. 
 
1 Disappointment not to have a chair’s written report 
 
I want, first, to express my concern that the chair’s report will be verbal; a written report is 
usually available, which allows public access before the meeting to issues they might want 
to raise. 
 
2 MSK service new contract – from the frying pan into the fire? 
 
MSK services move this autumn from a contract with HealthShare, to a contract with 
another national provider ConnectHealth. The whole process of procurement – retendering, 
redrawing the contract and the performance framework, the hand over, the staff, contracts 
for use of buildings – has not been accessible to the public – no big invitations in the local 
press to share experiences of the patients who used HealthShare, no open discussion 
about what would make it better.  We first became aware of the change – as a done deal – 
through Healthwatch, and attended their workshop on line with the new providers. 
 
This workshop did give a space to ask questions – for those involved in Healthwatch and 
patient participation groups (PPGs), which is not a majority of Oxfordshire patients who 
need the MSK services. But the contract was by then already sealed. What is perturbing for 
us in KONP is the total lack of transparency in reletting the contract, and the appalling 
testimonies on line from users of their services elsewhere in the country. They say nothing 
better predicts performance than past evidence – in this case it is hard to understand why 
Connect Health received the contract.   
 
I’m writing to ask that you do a very thorough scrutiny of their first month’s work at your 
November and January meeting, and that you invite much wider public involvement in 
evaluating ConnectHealth through the press, through Healthwatch, through feedback 
sheets at their clinics, so that we are not faced with the same problems which faced us with 
the old providers, HealthShare. This is a service that in our view should be provided 
inhouse, by the NHS, with NHS staff and in NHS buildings with NHS equipment. Only in this 
way can a truly flexible service, fit for purpose, and integrated into all the other NHS 
provision function properly. It goes without saying that this should be properly funded, 
and adequate numbers of staff paid enough to live in Oxfordshire should be available. 
Currently this is not, in our view, available – but simply outsourcing to a poor provider who 
has to make profits out of the same purse that would have been used inhouse with no 
profits necessary will not solve the problem 
 
We look forward to hearing from you. 
 
With best wishes, 
 
Bill MacKeith 
Secretary, Oxfordshire Keep Our NHS Public 

Page 131



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Bill MacKeith 
Oxfordshire Keep Our NHS Public 
c/o 60 Great Clarendon St 
Oxford     
OX2 6SX  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
Dear Mr MacKeith 
 
Re: 22 September 2022 Oxfordshire Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee: 
MSK and Chair’s Update Report  
 
Thank you for your letter dated 16 September 2022 which raised questions in respect of 
the Chair’s report and the new Oxfordshire Musculoskeletal (MSK) Physiotherapy 
Service provider, Connect Health. 
 
In respect of the Chair’s update report, as its content largely consisted of updates as to 
the work of the Committee’s sub-groups, it was felt that a verbal report would be 
appropriate on this occasion.  
 
As you maybe aware from watching the recording of the Committee meeting, a group of 
Committee Members also met with representatives from Connect Health in September 
in order to better understand Connect Health’s background and values; as well as their 
plans for continuous improvement, service user engagement and how they will meet 
their KPI targets as set by the commissioner of the service, the Integrated Care Board. 
It was noted by the group that Connect Health had acknowledged the previous 
difficulties that Healthshare patients faced, including poor communications, difficulties in 
receiving timely onward referrals and patients being unnecessarily held in the MSK 
service when they should have been referred on; and were keen to learn and improve in 
such areas. Methods to capture patient satisfaction were also discussed and it was 
stressed by the group that satisfaction levels of patients should be broken down and 
analysed by groupings such as by ethnicity and age.  
 
In accordance with the HOSC’s Work Programme, the Committee is due to scrutinise 
MSK Services in the County at its meeting on 9 February 2023 and expect 
representatives of both the provider and commissioner to be present and to answer 
questions. As part of this, the Committee will be keen to scrutinise patient satisfaction 
levels and will be keen to hear patient stories from sources such as Healthwatch.  
 
I hope this letter provides clarification and also reassurance as to the HOSC’s future 
plans for the thorough scrutiny of the MSK service.   

 
 

Yours sincerely  

Cllr Jane Hanna  
c/o County Hall 
New Road 
Oxford 
OX1 1ND 
 
28 October 2022 

Page 133



 
 

2 
 

 
 
Cllr Jane Hanna OBE Chair, Oxfordshire JHOSC, OCC 

Page 134



SCAS Improvement 
Programme update
01 November 2022

P
age 135



Update from the Board

In this month’s update we want to highlight the range 

of actions SCAS has taken to address 

the eleven “must do” recommendations from the 

CQC’s August 2022 report. These were the most 

important areas for us to make rapid progress on. 

We’re pleased to say there has been good progress, 

thanks to the huge amount of work by teams across 

the trust in the last few months.

A host of policies and processes have been reviewed 

and updated, with a mix of building on what we have 

and adopting new approaches from local partners 

and across the country.

Audits of our vehicles, sites and equipment have 

been carried out. Member of the Board and 

colleagues across all functions have also been 

through training to refresh their knowledge and 

learn new skills; from safeguarding to 

supporting colleagues.

Obviously, all our improvements need to be 

sustainable for the long-term, so there is lots more 

still to do. Our response to the CQC report is being 

aligned with existing plans to improve our 

performance, quality, governance and culture; to 

make sure we embed and continue to monitor the 

improvements we’re making. Our objective is to 

improve patient safety and experience alongside 

improving staff wellbeing.

The winter months ahead of us will be challenging; 

both for everyone in SCAS and across all our health 

and care partners. 

The immediate focus must be providing the 

best possible care to patients; but we are confident 

we will also continue to see progress with our 

longer-term improvement plans.

Thank you to all our partners who continue to support 

SCAS with the improvement programme and helping 

provide all our patients with the best care possible. If 

you would like further information, please do contact 

us through scas.communications@scas.nhs.uk.

Will 

Hancock

Chief 

Executive

Professor 

Sir Keith 

Willett

Chair

P
age 136

mailto:scas.communications@scas.nhs.uk


Where are we now?

Summary of initial actions completed 
To address must and should do requirements from the CQC’s August 2022 report

• Policy improvements:

• Including; incident reporting, safeguarding (x7 patient and staff facing), 
Mental Capacity Act, Duty of Candour, controlled drugs, raising concerns

• Process improvements:

• Incident reporting and investigation

• Risk management

• Leadership engagement and communications

• Site, vehicle and equipment audits:

• Controlled drugs and drug safes audit completed

• Infestations / infection prevention inspections completed at all main stations 
(23 sites)

• Governance improvements:

• External governance review by NHS England completed

• Safeguarding committee re-established

• IPC committee re-established

• Increased permanent resources for:

• Safeguarding, freedom to speak up, infection prevention and control, 
patient safety

Ongoing activity and sustainable delivery

Several important actions are underway and due to complete in the 
weeks/months ahead:

• Full medical devices audit across sites and vehicles (9,000+ pieces 
of equipment checked to date).

• Delivery of secondary Automated External Defibrillators (AEDs) for all 
operational frontline emergency ambulance vehicles.

• Integrated performance reporting review and improvements.

We are developing our medium to long term improvement plan to 
address areas which need to be embedded and monitored for 
sustainable change. 

This will incorporate work across areas including (but not limited to):

• Corporate governance strategic plan

• Leadership development programme

• Safeguarding strategy

• Rota/capacity review across 999 crews and contact centres

• Risk management framework

• People voice programme (triangulation and review of issues raised 
by staff through different channels)

• Internal communications and engagement improvement plan

P
age 137



Must Do Requirements

Must do Actions taken Next steps

Ensure all staff complete 

safeguarding training at the role 

appropriate level and any 

additional role specific training in 

line with the trust target. 

Level 3 training programme capacity extended. Weekly sessions running, with 469 

trained between March and October 2022. Reviewed all roles against level 3 

safeguarding requirements.

Continued delivery of extra level 3 training capacity to allow all relevant 

staff to complete training by 1 June 2023 (incl. staff in non-patient facing 

roles). 

Bi-monthly reporting of safeguarding training performance to the 

Safeguarding Committee, with further scrutiny by Quality and Safety 

Committee.

Regular reminders and awareness raising through internal communications 

and team briefings to maintain levels of training compliance.

Ensure that systems and 

processes for managing 

safeguarding within the trust 

are adequately resourced, 

effective and monitored by the 

board. 

A rapid review of safeguarding within the Trust was commissioned and reported in 

July 2022. The 21 recommendations have been adopted in full.

Safeguarding team capacity increased by 8.0 whole time equivalents and 

permanent recruitment underway. Interim cover in place.

Reviewed, updated and consulted on 7 policies related to safeguarding.

New leadership role of Associate Director of Safeguarding, Mental Health, Learning 

Disability and Complex Care developed and appointed to. In post under honorary 

agreement, permanent from 7 November 2022.

Finalise policies in November 2022 and deliver communications plan to 

launch and embed.

Quarterly assurance reporting and full Safeguarding Annual Report will 

include all relevant aspects of safeguarding systems, processes and 

resourcing.  Executive lead and Non-Executive Director Safeguarding 

Champion will monitor effectiveness with final oversight provided by the 

SCAS Board. 

A future peer review of SCAS safeguarding provision will be commissioned 

in 2023 to further review progress and identify if  further improvements are 

needed.

Provide a separate Mental 

Capacity Act (2005) Policy and 

ensure that staff understand the 

principles and application of the 

Mental Capacity Act (2005).

Mental Capacity Act policy finalised, awaiting final approval before distribution (incl. 

Equality Impact Assessment).

Mental capacity training aligned with safeguarding training strategy, and includes 

Mental Capacity Act content into safeguarding training across levels 1,2 and 3.

Introduced specific mental health capacity assessment training for all patient facing 

roles through statutory and mandatory eLearning.

Develop and deliver dedicated Mental Health Training and Learning 

Disabilities strategies. 

Recruit to new post for Learning Disability Lead.

Monitor compliance with training, reported though Safeguarding Committee

Finalise policy in November 2022 and deliver communications plan to 

launch and embed.

P
age 138



Must Do Requirements

Must do Actions taken Next steps

Ensure the Trust takes staff’s 

concerns seriously and takes 

demonstrable action to address 

their concerns. This to include 

where staff have raised concerns 

relating to bullying, harassment 

and sexually inappropriate 

behaviours. 

Ensure that it listens and 

responds to staff who raise 

concerns in line with their own 

policy and the Public Interest 

Disclosure Act (1998).

Recruited additional permanent roles to Freedom to Speak Up team; 

deputy guardian starting 7 November.   

Reviewed and updated all HR policies around raising concerns.

People and Culture Committee established to strengthen oversight and 

assurance of addressing staff concerns, and lead on monitoring 

concerns raised and progress of actions taken.

Speaking up, equality and sexual safety issues raised through 

roadshows linked to national Speak up month (October).

Increased frequency of SCAS Leaders meetings and changed format 

from webinar to normal meeting; improving engagement and ability of 

leaders to highlight issue with executive team.

Introduced monthly team brief with feedback process for team 

leads/managers to highlight issues.

Increased frequency of leadership visits with new feedback process to 

capture issues.

Bullying, harassment and sexual safety: 

• Civility training made mandatory requirement for all senior leaders; 

all completed training by 9 Nov (except one due to illness). 

• Internal co-design of sexual safety strategy underway. 

• Women’s staff network established

Develop People Voice programme – establishing an integrated 

process to collate and analyse staff feedback from all sources, 

including formal FTSU cases and wider sources. Strengthening 

system of monitoring and reporting on staff concerns.

Develop process for protected time for appraisal and mandatory  

training.

Develop and recruit to FTSU champions role. 

Internal communications and engagement improvement plan will 

support addressing listening and responding to staff concerns; 

aligned to the should do action to improve relationships and 

communications between staff and leaders.

Bullying, harassment, sexual safety:

Finalise and roll out sexual safety strategy and awareness 

campaign. 

Rolling out Just and Learning Culture programme to all of SCAS 

Leadership group.

Roll out Kindness Into Action programme commissioned via BOB 

ICS.

Review and implement job description improvements on 

expectations for compassionate leadership

P
age 139



Must Do Requirements

Must do Actions taken Next steps

Ensure that incidents are 

identified, reported and 

investigated in line with the NHS 

Serious Incident Reporting 

Framework, that action is taken to 

mitigate risks and that learning is 

shared across the organisation.

Ensure that where trends in 

adverse incidents are known that 

these are fully investigated, and 

action is taken to reduce future 

risks. 

Full review of approach to incident identification, reporting and investigating 

completed with new process implemented. 

New incident review panel established with ICS partners included in panel meetings.

Increased resources for patient safety team. 2x patient safety managers and 1x 

admin support role.

Retrospective review of all serious incidents completed with system partners, 

including Duty of Candour reporting.

Serious incidents policy reviewed, updated and consulted on. 

Updated incident reporting system (Datix) to improve reporting templates and update 

terminology (removing legacy words/phrases)

Patient safety awareness campaign run during October 2022, establishing new 

communications channels dedicated to patient safety information.

Permanent recruitment to Director of Nursing, Quality and Governance (Deputy Chief 

Nurse) underway, with interim cover in place.

Regular monitoring of incident reporting and 

investigation outcomes/trends through improved 

governance processes.

Finalise serious incident and incident reporting 

policies and deliver communications plan to launch 

and embed.

Regular incident reporting reminders and awareness 

raising through internal communications and team 

briefings to build positive culture on incident reporting.

P
age 140



Must Do Requirements

Must do Actions taken Next steps

The board must be sighted on 

accurate information about 

serious incidents occurring at 

the trust to enable strategic 

oversight and planning. 

Full review of patient safety information submitted to Board and 

Quality and Safety Committee.

Best practice review from system partners completed.

Serious incidents report added as standing item on Quality and 

Safety Committee agenda (covering numbers, themes and 

learning).

Quality and Safety Committee report to Board updated to include 

serious incidents reported lessons learned.

Reviewed and updated all patient safety risks captured on the 

corporate risk register and Board Assurance Framework.

Embed and monitor effectiveness of new Board/Committee 

reporting processes for serious incidents.

P
age 141



Must Do Requirements

Must do Actions taken Next steps

Ensure the governance and 

risks processes are fit for 

purpose and ensure ongoing 

assessment, monitoring and 

improve the quality and safety of 

the services provided. 

Independent Governance review carried out by NHS England and 

recommendations incorporated into draft corporate governance 

strategic plan including management/escalation/feedback/Board and 

committees governance and operation.

Board Assurance Framework (BAF) and Corporate Risk Register 

reviewed and updated. Reviewed process for escalating risks from local 

registered onto BAF. 

Audit of function-based risk registers to identify gaps and ensure local 

teams are maintaining registers and escalating risks appropriately.

Benchmarking/best practice review of risk management process.

NHS England led Board session improving integrated performance 

reporting.

ICS partners invited to join improvement programme delivery groups.

Finalise and approve Corporate Governance Strategic Plan in 

November 2022.

Define and implement further improvements to executive committee 

structure.

Design and commission additional governance training programme 

for Board and Governors.

Update risk management policy and framework with 

communications plan to launch and embed.

Validate all local risk registers by Jan 2023, then ongoing monitoring 

of local risk registers and escalation onto BAF.

Options appraisal/implementation of new risk management system, 

by March 2023.

Update Integrated Performance Report to Board with new data 

sources and reporting mechanisms, by March 2023.

P
age 142



Must Do Requirements

Must do Actions taken Next steps

Ensure that it meets the statutory 

requirements of the 

duty of candour. 

Duty of Candour policy reviewed, updated and circulated. 

Reviewed examples of partners’ Duty of Candour letters and updates 

made to SCAS template letter.

Duty of Candour requirement added to revised incident investigation 

template.

Sample audit of Duty of Candour compliance conducted in Oct 2022; 

reviewed 167 records/incidents.

Monthly review/update of Duty of Candour as an enduring process; 

reporting findings to Patient Safety Group and Quality & Safety 

Committee.

Regular reminders and awareness raising through internal 

communications and team briefings to maintain levels of 

compliance.

Ensure medicines are managed 

in accordance with the national 

guidance and that only authorised 

persons have access to controlled 

drugs. 

Controlled drugs policy reviewed, updated and recirculated; clarifying 

wording on appropriate access to control drugs.

Controlled drugs safe audit and stock checks completed. Audit 

confirmed a small number of safes with faults, all of which had been 

reported. Replacement safes installed where needed.

Guidance recirculated on importance of not sharing access cards and 

that staff with authority to access morphine must not ask others to 

collect doses on their behalf. 

Information shared to confirm correct way to report any drug safe faults 

to ensure rapid fix.

Maintain regular auditing of controlled drugs safe access to monitor 

compliance.

Regular reminders and awareness raising through internal 

communications and team briefings to maintain levels of 

compliance.

P
age 143



Performance recovery

We continue to prioritise actions to 
improve overall performance for call 
handling and response times. 

This was noted as a should do action 
in the CQC report and has been an 
active programme prior to the CQC 
inspection.

Pressure on 999,111 and Patient 
Transport Services remain high; as 
does pressure on other parts of the 
health and care system. 

As we move into winter, pressure is 
likely to increase.

Improvement actions completed in Sept / Oct 2022

• 30-minute immediate handover has been introduced to acute 

trusts within the SCAS footprint

• Reviewed and implemented new model for RRV resourcing in 

relation to utilisation

• Intelligent conveyance proposal shared with HIOW ICB

• Completed Optima review of hospital handover delays

• Commenced recruitment to contact centre 'twilight' shifts to 

provide additional resource in periods of high demand

• Additional welfare support to provide staff psychological support 

• Updated the training & mentorship model to ensure sufficient 

levels of competence and training for new starters.

• Extended existing Recruitment and Retention Premium (RRP) 

payments

• Additional 20 whole time equivalents to emergency operations 

centre through Isle of Wight partnership

P
age 144



External support and oversight

Recovery Support Programme

We have officially moved into segment 4 of the national oversight 
framework; with additional resources being provided through the 
NHS England Recovery Support Programme.

Kate Hall has been confirmed as our Improvement Director from 
NHS England and is carrying out diagnostic as part of her early 
focus.

Building on our immediate action plans, Kate will work with SCAS to 
develop a programme of work – to include immediate changes and 
medium/long-term changes likely to span a number of years. To be 
developed before Christmas. 

Included in the improvement programme will be a target exit date to 
move from System Oversight Framework level 4 (SOF4) to SOF3. 
However the improvement programme will continue as the Trust 
moves into SOF3.

An initial workshop to discuss “exit criteria” was held on 24 October 
– the exit criteria will define the outcomes the Trust needs to achieve 
to move to SOF3.

Oversight and assurance

Oversight leadership will be through Hampshire and Isle of 
Wight Integrated Care Board (ICB) in partnership with NHS 
England (who retain accountability for the RSP process). 

Tri-partite meetings 

• Monthly meetings established with NHS England, Integrated 

Care Systems and SCAS; with fortnightly sub-groups. 

CQC review meetings 

• Session on 7 November to review progress.

Internal oversight / programme governance

• Improvement Director joined oversight board and workstream 

delivery groups.

• ICB representatives joined internal workstream delivery 

groups.

P
age 145



Latest performance

September 2022 performance 

SCAS England 

Times show 

hrs:mins:secs

% of all calls Mean average 90th centile Mean average 90th centile

Category 1 5% 9:42 17:16 9:19 16:38

Category 2 55% 37:35 1:18:17 47:59 1:45:45

Category 3 23% 2:39:06 6:18:04 2:42:28 6:51:31

Category 4 2% 3:03:15 7:30:11 3:12:34 7:48:12

Category 5 15% Hear and treat calls, no crews sent to scene

Mean average and 90th centile figures explained:

9 out of 10 category 1 patients were reached within 17mins 16seconds, with the average wait across all 

Category 1 calls being 9mins 42seconds 

Patient care remains our priority, 

and all teams continue to work 

extremely hard to provide the 

best possible care for our 

patients.

For Category 1 calls SCAS’ 

mean performance is 22 

seconds below the national 

average.

For category 2, SCAS’ mean 

performance was 10mins better 

than the national average 

For category 3-4 calls SCAS 

was marginally better than the 

national averages.

P
age 146



Further updates

We will be publishing monthly updates on our public website as 
well as circulating these slides to stakeholders. For the latest 
update please visit:

www.scas.nhs.uk/CQC

P
age 147



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	5 Primary Care
	Primary Care Findings Report
	Annex A - GP Patient Survey Results on Isolation
	Annex B - Patients per GP Practice Analysis
	Annex C - BBOLMC Activity Data Presentation at 17 October 2022 Primary Care Workshop

	6 Integrated Care Programme for Oxfordshire
	7 Serious Mental Health
	8 Work Programme
	9 Actions and Recommendations Tracker
	10 Healthwatch Update
	11 Chair's Update Report
	KONP letter to JHOSC September 2022
	OJHOSC reply to MSK Inquiry
	SCAS Improvement programme briefing




